Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

Penalita House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

¥strad Mynach, ¥strad Mynach, c A E R P"' '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG EUNOOR BWRDEISTIREE SINGE

CAERFIFILY
-~

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud &'r agenda hwn cysylltwch & Rebecca Barrett
(Rhif Ffon: 01443 864245 Ebost: barrerm@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 21 Medi 2022

| bwy bynnag a fynno wybod,

Cynhelir cyfarfod aml-leoliad o'r Pwyllgor Tacsi a Chyffredinol yn Nhy Penallta, a thrwy Microsoft
Teams ar Dydd Mercher, 28ain Medi, 2022 am 10.00 am i ystyried y materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda
canlynol. Gall Cynghorwyr ac aelodau'r cyhoedd sy’n dymuno siarad ar unrhyw eitem wneud hynny drwy
wneud cais i'r Cadeirydd. Mae hefyd croeso i chi ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, mae angen o leiaf
3 diwrnod gwaith o rybudd os byddwch chi'n dymuno gwneud y naill neu'r llall. Bydd gwasanaeth
cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais.

Gall aelodau'r Cyhoedd neu'r Wasg fynychu'n bersonol yn Nhy Penallta neu gallant weld y cyfarfod yn fyw
drwy'r ddolen ganlynol: https://civico.net/caerphilly

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffrydio'n fyw a bydd recordiad ar gael i'w weld drwy wefan y Cyngor, ac
eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr
unigolion sy'n siarad ar gael yn gyhoeddus i bawb drwy wefan y Cyngor:

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Christina Harrhy
PRIF WEITHREDWR

AGENDA

Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

A greener place Man gwyrddach

|| s

may be inany J5 (2
aence “Nuage o format @t

/

Gallweh ohepy, mewn unrhyw iaith neu (ot ™



https://civico.net/caerphilly
https://civico.net/caerphilly

2 Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

Atgoffi'r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol &
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr
a Swyddogion.

| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad canlynol:-

3 Canlyniadau’r Ymgynghoriad a Darparu Profion Cerbydau Trwyddedig yn y Dyfodol.
1-22

4 Adolygiad o Ofynion y Cyngor o ran Trwyddedu Cerbydau Hacni (Tacsis) a Cherbydau Hurio
Preifat, Gyrwyr a Gweithredwyr.
23-76

Cylchrediad:

Cynghorwyr M.A. Adams (Is Gadeirydd), Mrs E.M. Aldworth, Mrs P. Cook, D. Cushing, G. Ead,
C.J. Gordon, D.C. Harse, Cynghorydd, Ms J.G. Jones, D.W.R. Preece, Mrs D. Price, J.E. Roberts,
J. Scriven, S. Williams a W. Williams (Cadeirydd)

A Swyddogion Priodol

SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i'r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.

Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas &'r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu.

Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i'r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd
Pwyligor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd neu cysylltwch & Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01443 863028.



http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

TAXI AND GENERAL COMMITTEE - 28TH SEPTEMBER 2022

SUBJECT: CONSULTATION RESULTS AND FUTURE PROVISION OF
LICENSED VEHICLE TESTING

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR, ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform Members of the results of a consultation exercise with the Licensed trade
on future vehicle testing arrangements of Hackney Carriages and Private Hire
Vehicles.

1.2 For Members to consider the options for future testing provision, consultation results
and views of Licensing and other stakeholders in order to determine future testing
requirements.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 In 2021 the Caerphilly County Borough Taxi Driver Association (C.C.B.T.D.A)
requested that requirements for vehicle testing for Hackney Carriages and Private
Hire vehicles be changed in order to accept MOT test certificates from any approved
MOT testing station rather than the current in house facility based at the Tir-y-Berth
Depot. The latter currently carries out an MOT check and Compliance check on other
requirements for licensed vehicles.

2.2  Asthe CCBTDA does not represent all licensees and licensed vehicle owners a
consultation exercise was carried out with the whole trade to ascertain their views on
current service provision and potential future options.

2.3 This report outlines the result of that consultation exercise, additional information on
testing requirements, views of other stakeholders and implications of potential
changes in order for Members to make an informed decision on future testing
provision.

24 Fleet Services have been experiencing difficulties in filling vacancies for mechanics
and MOT testers across the service area for some time. With ongoing pressures
across the whole fleet function the service must prioritise maintenance of the
Council’s own fleet of vehicles which are essential for service delivery. An alternative
option is therefore required for providing the “taxi” MOT licensing function for the
authority.

Page 1



3.1

a)

b)

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members consider the content of this report and determine the requirements for
future testing provision for CCBC from the following options.

Accepting an MOT certificate from any independent VOSA approved testing facility
within CCBC with licensing officers carrying out the vehicle Compliance check if
suitable facilities can be identified at Ty Penallta.

Instruct the Licensing service to ascertain the level of interest of MOT testing stations
within CCBC for consideration of approved testing status and determine the required
number and locations across the county borough. This would also include completion
of the Council compliance test.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure suitable and fit for purpose vehicle testing arrangements are provided
within the county borough for ascertaining the suitability of vehicles to be licensed as
Private Hire vehicles and Hackney Carriages.

THE REPORT

In 2021 the Caerphilly County Borough Taxi Driver Association (C.C.B.T.D.A)
requested that requirements for vehicle testing be changed in order to accept MOT
test certificates from any approved MOT testing station rather than the current in
house facility based at the Tir-y-Berth Depot. The council’s existing requirements are
that vehicles renewing their licence or new vehicles applying for a licence must be
tested at the in house CCBC depot run by Fleet Services who provide an MOT
certificate and complete a CCBC Compliance check.

The Compliance check includes items such as presence and condition of fire
extinguishers, first aid kits, exterior and interior conditions of vehicles, use of CCTV
cameras, hackney carriage meters etc. This is carried out at the same time as the
MOT check and included in the price of the test. The current testing station is
independent as it does not carry out any work on vehicles prior to a test or before any
re tests. The depot also carry out spot checks on vehicles for the Licensing service
where there is a concern about the fitness or condition of particular vehicles. The
depot often undertakes MOT/Compliance checks at short notice for replacement and
accident damaged licensed vehicles in order to allow licensees to continue to trade.

There is currently only one MOT testing bay operational at the depot with a limit of
four slots per day (Monday to Thursday) plus additional slots for emergencies and
vehicle re-tests. The depot is open 7am to 4 pm Monday to Thursday and 3pm on a
Friday. There have been several issues with the breakdown of equipment over the
last year and in response Fleet Services have invested in new equipment such as
emissions and brake testing machines. However the service is struggling to fill vacant
posts for MOT testers / Engineering staff and with competing demands for
mechanics/testers across all the fleet functions.

At the start of the Covid 19 pandemic in 2020, the testing facility at the depot was not
open to the public / non CCBC vehicles and so as an interim measure MOT
certificates were accepted from approved MOT testing stations in the short term. This
may have had a bearing on the request from the trade to enable this option going
forward.

Page 2



55

5.6

5.7
5.7.1

5.7.2

5.7.3

A comparison of “Taxi “testing provision across the 22 authorities in Wales in 2019
provided the following information on vehicle testing arrangements in Wales.

e 11/22 -50% retain in house testing.
o 9/22 - 41% private MOT garages

o 2/22- 9 % Mix of in house & private garages

Officers have sought to establish the updated 2022 position in relation to vehicle
testing arrangements in Wales and an update will be provided for members at the
meeting.

Consultation Exercise

The consultation survey was posted on the CCBC website for completion between 19™
April 2021 and 5" May 2021 and is attached for information as Appendix A. An email
was also sent to the over 400 licensed drivers, operators and vehicle licence holders
encouraging them to take part in the survey with a direct link to the survey page. The
C.C.B.T.D.A were also asked to help raise awareness of the survey with their
members. Paper copies of the survey were also made available.

Overall only 48 responses were received, these responses were from a mix of driver
licence, vehicle proprietor licence holders and one private hire vehicle operator. The
survey received a response rate of just 12% of consultees.

Responses to questions are summarised in the tables below, a full list of the
comments received can be seen in the survey summary in Appendix B.

Are you satisfied with existing testing arrangements for hackney carriage and
private hire vehicles?

| Yes 20 (48%) | No 28 (58%) |

What do you consider to be the benefits of the existing testing facilities? Tick
all that apply

Independent Nature of the Testing 27 (66%)
Station

Cost of MOT/Vehicle Compliance check | 23 (56%)
Availability of Test slots 15 (37%)
Other (please state below) 4 (10%)
It's close

Because its local

Local

| think we should be able to use any garage, if a car was to fail we don’t have to
pay an additional fee.

Page 3



5.8

5.8.1

How could the existing in house testing be improved?

By giving online options to book tests and to pay for the test

Being able to book online for your tests and update the equipment in the garage

More availability of test slots

Multiple testing bays, proper market prices, free retests within 10 working days

More qualified MOT technicians and more available appointments

Modernisation, 2 MOT lanes, enough slots to get a retest in on the same day

Please indicate preference for future testing provision

station and take vehicle to a second
location to complete the Compliance
test

Retain in house testing of licensed 15 (31%)
HC/PH vehicles

Establish a list of approved testing 7 (15%)
stations to carry out MOT & Compliance

check

Accept MOT from any approved testing | 26 (54%)

Fleet Services response

The results of the survey were shared with Fleet services who provided the following

comments in response:-

Increased test slots / MOT testers

The service currently can only offer a maximum of 6 slots per day. The service has
been unable to fill a number of vacant posts for fitters, mechanics, MOT testers which
is causing pressure across the whole Fleet Service provision. This appears to be a
general problem and is not limited to CCBC. This was highlighted to Senior
Management as part of the on-going Fleet Review and resulted in a successful growth
bid to recruit several additional Fitters. Despite the addition of a market supplement
the service was still unable to recruit the required number of mechanics and MOT

testers to meet service demands.

MOT waiting area

A comfortable waiting area is already provided with CCTV viewing of the testing.

MOT Parking Bays

The service has reverted to the previous bays by B5 which are clearly marked as
such to keep them clear, this change also satisfies Health & Safety concerns
regarding MOT customers crossing the road between moving HGV traffic.

Page 4




5.9

5.90.1

5.9.2

Improvements

The service has invested in a new emissions machine and is in the process of
procuring a new roller brake tester which will reduce station breakdowns.

General Comments

The authority operates one of the largest local authority fleets in Wales which
includes many different types of vehicles, many of which come under the scope of
HGV Operator Licensing, which has strict compliance conditions attached. There are
currently 111 vehicles in this category which require a safety inspection every 4 or 6
weeks. Some of the HGV fleet are specialised vehicles such as refuse collection
vehicles (RCVs), compactor semi-trailers, road sweepers and gulley tankers, all of
which require specialist maintenance and equipment. In addition to the HGV fleet,
there are around 480 other vehicles of various types, all of which undergo
maintenance and repair in house at Tir-y-Berth Depot. Problems with recruiting
suitably qualified and experienced staff despite the additional market supplement
mean that the service must prioritise its core services and functions. In order to do so
it must reduce the demand on qualified fitters and mechanics for other services such
as MOT tests and Compliance checks on “taxi” vehicles”. Despite its best intentions
the depot has been unable to offer the level of service required by the taxi trade and
the Licensing service and a number of recent equipment failures have exacerbated
the situation. The depot will continue to provide the service short term whilst an
alternative option is agreed and implemented but cannot commit to doing so in the
long term.

Alternative options

Section 50 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 allows

a Council to require the testing of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles by or
on behalf of the Council at such place as they reasonably give notice, for up to three
occasions in a year. The Act also requires that such testing centres should be within
the council’s own administrative area.

MOT carried out by any independent VOSA approved MOT testing station .

If MOT’s were to be accepted from any independent VOSA approved Testing station
within the county borough, the authority would have to establish alternative
arrangements for completing the additional compliance check to establish
compliance with CCBC Vehicle conditions. If the Licensing service carried out these
checks it would impact on workload of the service and a suitable covered location at
Ty Penallta would be required in order to examine the vehicles safely and in
inclement weather. This would result in a two stage checking process, however the
compliance test could generally be combined with the issue of plates, interior badges
and other documentation, if there are no issues found with the vehicle. The addition
of another Licensing officer and Licensing Apprentice in the budget for 22/23 will
assist in managing the increased workload. It is estimated that officers would need to
carry out compliance checks on over 450 vehicles per year.

There would be a one off cost to establish a suitable covered site in which to
examine vehicles at Ty Penallta but once installed costs will be limited to officer time.
As stated above the compliance check will generally be completed at the same time
as the issue of plates to vehicle owners and other associated paperwork.

Subject to required changes to accommodate a covered checking facility, this option
would be quicker to implement and ease the demands on fleet services.

Page 5



5.9.3

594

5.9.5

5.9.6

5.9.7

Vehicle owners would have more flexibility on where and when to get an MOT
including Saturday mornings.

It is understood that a number of licensed drivers, vehicle proprietors and private hire
operators may also have other business interests, in particular the operation of MOT
testing facilities. In such instances, applicants or licence holders will be required to
use an independent facility for the purpose of completing an MOT as part of the
vehicle licensing process.

It is noted that the above option i.e. External MOT and separate compliance check
was the favoured option of 26 out of 48 respondees during the consultation held with
licence holders.

Whilst an MOT will assess the mechanical safety and environmental standards of a
vehicle, the MOT does not incorporate checks as to the exterior appearance and
interior condition and additional elements of the Council compliance such as the
presence of roof domes, meters and tariff information on Hackney carriage vehicles,
additionally the presence of a fire extinguisher / first aid kit and other elements for the
comfort of passengers such as operational windows. The condition and appearance
and ultimately passenger comfort when using licensed vehicles not only reflects on
the licence holder but also the local authority issuing the licence. Therefore, the two
stage ‘checking’ process will allow the checks and balances and general oversight by
Officers of vehicles that seek or hold vehicle licenses and to address any issues
should they arise.

The Current Council Compliance sheet detailing the matters checked during the
compliance test are reproduced for Members information as Appendix C.

MOT’s accepted from a limited number of approved MOT Testing stations

An alternative option would be to approve a number of testing stations within the
council’s boundaries that would be required to meet certain requirements which
would be audited by the Licensing service on a regular basis. One of the
requirements would be the additional compliance check and a cap on prices charged.
This system is currently operated by a number of local councils. Testing stations
meeting the minimum requirement could be invited to express interest for
consideration of inclusion in the scheme and could also include the current in-house
testing facility. Brief details of the testing standards required by another authority are
listed below for information.

Testing Standards

The testing station is required:

(a) To undertake the MOT testing of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles at the
request, and on behalf, of the licensing authority. The test shall be to the minimum
standard prescribed by the Secretary of State for Transport and also the licensing
authority's requirements contained in the current version of the Councils Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Additional Testable Items.

(b) To retain its status as a VOSA approved ("MOT") testing station;

(c) Hold a “green rating” (low risk rating) under the DVSA Risk Assessment for MOT

testing centres.

Page 6



5.9.8

5.10

6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

(d) To have been registered with VOSA for a minimum of 1 year.

Local authorities that use this option set a maximum fee which includes the MOT fee
set by DVSA and an element for the compliance check.

The Licensing Service would also use any of the approved garages to carry out their
spot checks on licensed vehicles.

Such a scheme would however take time to introduce and is unlikely to be
implemented quick enough to reduce the pressures on fleet services. It is estimated
that this option would be more labour intensive and expensive for the authority and
the trade long term.

Conclusion

Members of the licensed trade have requested a change in testing requirements for
vehicles licensed as Hackney carriages or Private Hire Vehicles. The report
summarises the result of a consultation exercise with the trade, the response of Fleet
Services to the consultation results and comments and information on the options for
any alternative testing provision. Fleet Services have confirmed that they are no
longer able to provide the MOT and Compliance checks for “Taxi” vehicles in future,
so a new vehicle testing arrangements are required.

ASSUMPTIONS

No assumptions have been made or were thought necessary.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The report outlines a number of options for consideration of the Taxi & General
Licensing Committee. Members will consider the consultation responses from the
trade, comments from Fleet Services and potential options for future testing
provisions. The full impact will depend on which option is chosen for future vehicle
testing provision.

Link to Integrated Impact Assessment

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There will be financial implications for the authority depending on the option chosen
for future provision. A move to accept any MOT testing station / list of approved
testing stations would result in loss of income for Fleet services.

The loss of income is estimated to be circa £16k. Fleet currently charge £35 per test,
around 400 vehicles are licences per year, this does not include retests or spot test
checks carried out per year. The £16k allows for 457 tests to be carried out per year.

The fee charged for current MOT & Compliance checks does not cover the cost of
providing the service. There are potentially other costs associated with additional
compliance checks on vehicles for the authority and the trade and further information
is required on this. A change to an approved list of test stations could cap the price

Page 7


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/iia-taxi-testing

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

111

Author:

charged and include the compliance element as well. The latter option would also
require a monitoring process to be carried out by the Licensing service to ensure
standardisation and consistency of approach. Additional workload/processes may
add to the cost of providing the licensing function.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

As per the above any personnel impacts will depend on the chosen option for future
testing arrangements. If licensing officers carry out the compliance checks this will
add significantly to their workload as there are around 450 Vehicles that would
require checking each year. The service has however recently appointed an
additional officer and an apprentice licensing officer which would assist with work
pressures. Alternatively establishing and monitoring an approved number of testing
stations would increase the workload of managers and officers involved in selecting
and monitoring the approved garages.

CONSULTATIONS

This report has been sent to the Consultees listed below and all comments received
are reflected in this report.

Paragraph 5.7 onwards above details the consultation exercise undertaken with the
licensed trade and the results of the same.

STATUTORY POWER

Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976,
Town Police Clauses Act 1847

Lee Morgan, Licensing Manager, morgall6@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees:  Clir, Walter Williams, Chair Taxi and General Licensing Committee

CllIr, Mike Adams, Vice Chair Taxi and General Licensing Committee
Clir Philippa Leonard Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection
Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director Economy and Environment
willims@caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure
Services

Hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Trantrji@caerphilly.gov.uk

Jacqui Morgan, Trading Standards, Licensing and Registrars Manager
Morgaj4@caerphilly.gov.uk

Mike Headington, Green Spaces and Transport Services Manager
headim@caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Mitcham, Fleet and Vehicle Maintenance Manager
Mitchr2@caerphilly.gov.uk

Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer
harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Page 8


mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:Hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Dave Roberts, Principal Group Accountant
Roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk

Lynne Donovan ,Head of people Services
Donovli@caerphilly.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Vehicle Inspection standards - Vehicle Inspection Standard.aspx (caerphilly.gov.uk)

Appendices:

Appendix A Copy of survey questions
Appendix B Consultation results
Appendix C  Details of Compliance check.

Page 9


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Licensing/Vehicle_Inspection_Standard.aspx

Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 10



Appendix A

LCOUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY

Vehicle Testing for Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles
- 0000000000000

A request has been received to the Licensing Authority to move away from the
requirement for licensed hackney carriage and private hire vehicles to be
tested at the council's testing station at Tir-y-Berth. As a licence holder we
would seek your views in relation to future vehicle testing requirements

Only one response is permitted per individual, to validate your response you
are required to complete your name and licence details below

Q1 Full Name
48

Q2 | amcompleting as a... (please select all that apply)

37 Driver
32 Vfehicle Licence holder

1 Private Hire Operator

Q3  Are you satisfied with existing testing arrangements for hackney carriage and private hire
vehicles?

20 Yes
28 No

Q4  Please give reasons for your response

44

left

Page 11



Appendix A

Q5 What do you consider to be the benefits of the existing testing facilities? Tick all that apply

27 Independent Nature of the Testing Station - i.e. no gain from detailing defects on MOT/Compliance
23 Cost of MOT/Vehicle Compliance check

15 Availability of Test slots

4 Other

If other, please specify
4

left

Q6  How could the existing in house testing be improved?
48

left

The Licensing Authority is intent upon maintaining MOT, plus additional
elements of the taxi/private hire vehicle compliance check in order to ensure
passenger safety and comfort. If the council were to consider an alternative
provision for vehicle testing, these are the following options:

a) Establish a number of 'approved' facilities that would be required to carry
out the vehicle compliance check in addition to a standard MOT. This is likely
to require a tender process by the Authority but would give a choice of a
number of premises across the borough. The Authority would also carry out
checks on the premises to ensure standardisation.

b) Accept an MOT from any authorised MOT testing station which may then
require the compliance test to be carried out separately at another location eg.
Tir-y-Berth depot or CCBC offices.

Q7  With the above in mind please indicate your preference for future testing provision
(choose one only)

15 Retain in house testing of licensed HC/PH vehicles

7 Establish a list of approved testing stations to carry out MOT & Compliance check

26 Accept MOT from any approved testing station and take vehicle to a second location to complete
the Compliance test

Q8 Please add any other comments that may be relevant to this consultation
16

Page 12



Appendix A

Following the close of the survey, a report will be prepared for Members of the
Taxi & General Committee for their consideration as to the comments
received.
If your response to any of the questions in this survey have been impacted by any of the
following (age, disability, ethnic origin, sex, gender reassignment, marital status, religious

belief or non belief, use of Welsh Language, BSL, or other languages, nationality or
responsibility for any dependents) please give details below

2

How we use your personal information:

The information you provide will used y the service area relevant to the
consultation / survey within Caerphilly County Borough Council. Views
expressed will be collated together and used to produce a summary report.
Depending on scope / nature of the survey / consultation, the summary report
will be used to evaluate and remodel services / priorities etc. We will not keep
your views in in a way that will identify you for longer than is necessary.

You have a number of rights in relation to the information we hold about you,
including the right of access to your information and the right of complaint if
you are unhappy with the way your information is processed. For further
information on how we process the information and your rights please go to:
"http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-
Notice-Consultations-Surveys.aspx"
www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOl/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-Co

Thank you for completing the survey
Please click below to submit

Page 13



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 14



Appendix B

Vehicle_Testing Page:1

Testing of HC/PHV Consultation

Testing of HC/PHV Consultation

This report was generated on 11/05/21. Overall 48 respondents completed this questionnaire.
The report has been filtered to show the responses for 'All Respondents'.

The following charts are restricted to the top 12 codes. Lists are restricted to the most recent
100 rows.

Full Name

| am completing as a... (please select all that apply)

Vehicle Licence holder (32) _67%

Private Hire Operator (1) I2%

Snap snapsurveys.com

Page 15



Appendix B

Vehicle_Testing Page:2

Testing of HC/PHV Consultation
Are you satisfied with existing testing arrangements for hackney carriage and private
hire vehicles?

oy =
oy =

Please give reasons for your response

My belief is that the current trying works and only needs a little improvement as in bringing it up to the
modern era

| believe the garage is not fit for purpose

i dont think the garage is up to the job

Because you have to wait long time for the car to get booked in Because there's no space

It's fair in testing and very easily accessible from around the borough

| think any mot garage should be able to carry out the mot as during lockdown it proved it worked
plus it gives mot bay work !

Can't get in quick enough and sometimes gets cancelled

| believe consistency is key to maintain standards within the trade.

Taking to long for test, viewing area not sufficient, other vehicles taking priority,
Can't always get times | need

| believe it i very complicated for myself being dyslexic i would much prefer to be able to go to my
local mot center and be able to sort it out

No need to have stations elsewhere

A mot is the same at any garage why should we be made to only go to the council garage when it
could be more convenient to go to a local garage there all covered by vosa

| find the examiners are excellent,if there is a problem its explained fully...my knowledge of mechanics
is poor so i appreciate the info.

Licensing by the Council is safer and more secure

It's complete waist of time, | live in Cardiff | have to go all the way to try birth for MOT, also it's quite
hard to get appointments some time ,I think council should allow all taxis MOT from any DVSA
authorised garage

Im very happy professional staff convenient testing centre
| am happy as it maintains consistency with the standard of inspection and testing.

When you phone them it gets messed up what you're saying to office staff then When they get it
wrong I've been called a liar

Very hard to get a m o t slot If you go in the 28 day window

Not enough slots in a day,

Not enough booking slots available Can’t book slots online

Many years of excellence service

Because its local

Continuity is important to keep standards in the trade

Having to phone up might have to wait for couple of days for app

There discrepancies when different testers and they are putting things that don't Even come under
MOT testing and this then course upset And rows that could of been avoided

Snap snapsurveys.com

Page 16



Appendix B

Vehicle_Testing Page:3
Testing of HC/PHV Consultation

Please give reasons for your response

| think this MOT station is far behind the times

Appointment was cancelled on two occasions due to MOT station equipment was broken down .

It is very thoroughly done at ccbec and that’s is the best thing for MOT not any old garage

When | come into my 2i day wi xow if d it hard to get a slot

| think it should be put out to tender

To be called the day before or on the day to say they have cancelled you appointment at the testing
station, is really not appropriate. People plan their day/week around appointments, and especially 1
as important as an mot test for your vehicle, and in the past it has been difficult to get an appointment
that fits in with out schedule, hence why | always try booking in with plenty of time.

Because it is always difficult to re arrange tests and get a test when it is needed and | believe the
equipment and process needs to be updated

In the 16 years | have held a taxi licence | have never encountered a problem.

| feel confident that the test centre will give my vehicle a honest test. Because the test centre is safety
orientated not profit making | feel the mechanic will be honest when testing the vehicles.

| worry that having the ability to use a personal garage of a drivers choice is going to open the doors
to backhanded MOT'’s that are not properly inspected and put public at risk, current taxis under go so
much wear and tear and should be held up to the highest possible level of MOT inspection. Moving it
is going to open flood gates to potential exploiting the system.

Difficult to get an appointment when plating is due

The process in place is working well and | have never had a problem booking my vehicles in for their
platting.

it is hard to get a test time to fit in around daily commitments

| think if you move the testing centre this will lead to a lot more unroadworthy vehicles on the road .
Everyone should have to use the same test centre which | consider fair for all .

VWe need more to choose our own garage and at our suitable time.
Would be nice to use a local garage
Just not good enough

What do you consider to be the benefits of the existing testing facilities? Tick all that
apply

Independent Nature of the Testing Station - i.e. no gain from detailing defects on

MOT/Compliance (27)

Cost of MOT/Vehicle Compliance check (23) -56%

66%

Availability of Test slots (15) -37%
Other (4) |10%

If other, please specify

It's close

Because its local

Local

| think we should be able to use any garage, if a car was to fail we don’t have to pay an additional fee

Snap snapsurveys.com

Page 17



Appendix B

Vehicle_Testing Page:4
Testing of HC/PHV Consultation

How could the existing in house testing be improved?

By giving online options to book tests and to pay for the test

Being able to book online for your tests and update the equipment in the garage

by giving on line opts to book a test and to pay for the test

Mor availability test slots

Very happy with the system.

None

Not sure that's your job

Use a tester/s that are willing or want to do the job not one that is unhappy doing a job he doesn't
want to do.

More than one mot testers

Multiple testing bays proper market prices free retests within 10 working days
Unsure

Reduce the high cost when mot is only £40

Mace it more accessible to re test

I’'m quite happy with the legend known as DAl CROWBAR

More qualified mot technicians and more available appointments

| know the price of the MOT is about same as other garages but the extra cost of £197 to be paid is
very high.

present arrangement is satisfactory
N/A

Extra bays and extra testers as the vehicles are our lifeline and need to be back on the road if we
occur any failures

Im happy with the way things are run at the testing centre
| have never had an issue in 16 years
More mot testers and more bays so you don't have to wait so long to get a test

In this day and age you should be able to book your m o t on line and with the plate being made
Computor this could also be done on line it’s just a matter of the council coming in to the 21 century

Modernisation More mot inspectors Another mot lane

Modernisation 2 mot lanes enough slots to get a retest in on the same day
Happy with the service

Happy with service

Use testers that want the job not who is disinterested because they don't want to be involved with taxi
MOT

A proper waiting area and parking spot half time parking spot full of council vec
By having unbiased testers that do what they want just to because they can

By massively improving and getting up to date

more slot availablity or more back up MOT stations.

It can’t it's perfect

Come into the 21st century with bookings

More ramps & More inspectors

Extra ramps and Mot testers, having the additional ramps & testers would illuminate all the problems,
which would also give more times for testing slots.

Snap snapsurveys.com

Page 18



Appendix B

Vehicle_Testing Page:5
Testing of HC/PHV Consultation
How could the existing in house testing be improved?
By coming up to speed

Reduce the cost of testing. As | understand it only £4.00 (approx) of the cost of the test goes to the
DFT.

I'm happy the in house testing. | don't think there are any improvements.
More slots, no re- test charge and Saturday working hours.

By the MOT Bay being more readily available or having a second bay, it seems to be out of service
on a few occasions

More appointments being made available in time for plating
in my opinion it can not, has it works very well.

i deal solely with one garage and he deals with all my maintenance and repairs and if something is
wearing out he advises me before it develops into a major problem

It's worked ok for years so why change things now
Reduce the cost of the MOT so it can be aftractive.

There is nothing wrong | would just like to use local garage spend my money wear i earn it.i like to
spend my money local

Better testers

With the above in mind please indicate your preference for future testing provision
(choose one only)

54%

15%

Please add any other comments that may be relevant to this consultation

Personally | would overhaul testing of vehicles earlier than 2010 and abolish them vehicles to improve
standard of vehicles inside and outside looks as | think some of them give the taxi trade dis-credit to
the ones clean and look after their vehicles.

| would prefer to keep in house testing but second choice would be to have a list of approved testing
stations.

Any mot station in ccbc, if council contacted them and asked to carry out the compliance check on all
licensed vehicles and be given guidance by council on how to do this. This will be a major cost cutting
for licensing with no need for tenders and expense.

If we can arrange our own mot test it relieves the pressure on myself

It should be kept to the council to keep the in house car license with regards MOT ..other Mot stations
may be just may be a little more laxed with the strict allowances of taxis ..so on that point it’s a no
from me to other stations

All covered by vosa

List of approved by the Council as its a wider option than the waiting times that we have at Tirybirth,
council approved garages would be better because that way we still have the strict mot rules but a
wider variety

This will insure that vehicles are tested under the same conditions and standards.

Snap snapsurveys.com

Page 19



Appendix B

Vehicle_Testing Page:6
Testing of HC/PHV Consultation
Please add any other comments that may be relevant to this consultation
When you are looking after your car like we always have it should be anyone approved Like it was in
lock down
Think it be far to go to any approved M.O.T testing stations
If the council had extra ramps/testers available then none of these would need to be changed.

The only benefit would be a reduction in the cost of the MOT. | see no merit in option 3 as this would
require a second appointment.

| feel unhappy and worried about taking my vehicle to another testing site because they are profit
making whereas the council garage is safety oriented. Also | worry if the garages tendering have they
got the right qualifications.

Local garages will be more convenient and don't change for re-testing.

All mot testing centers are approved by vosa, being able to use any mot testing center will make it

easier to get vehicles mot tested wherever they are in the borough and be able to have any work
required carried out at the same time.

i think that having a choice of testing stations would be an advantage to taxi operators but they
should be checked to make sure all vehicles are tested properly, to maintain the safety standard
needed to keep all taxis safe

If your response to any of the questions in this survey have been impacted by any of the
following (age, disability, ethnic origin, sex, gender reassignment, marital status,
religious belief or non belief, use of Welsh Language, BSL, or other languages,
nationality or responsibility for any dependents) please give details below

N/A
None

Snap snapsurveys.com

Page 20



A
CAEREHILLY

COUNTY

CAERFFIL
>

Date of test:

73
L

/ §

REF:

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE
VEHICLE — COMPLIANCE CHECK LIST

Re-Test Previous Checklist No

Appendix C

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire

Plate No. (renewal only):

Make and Model:

Licence Expiry Date. (renewal only):

Registration No.

Seating Capacity (excl. driver):

Chassis No. Wheelchair accessible: YES / NO
Type of Fuel: Hydraulic Lift: YES / NO
Mileage: Meter No. (Where fitted)

Owner’'s Name:

CCTV Cameras in Vehicle

YES

NO

Location of camera:

Advertising on vehicle

YES

Location:

Schedule of Items

Pass

Fail

Comments

*Exterior/Interior Licence Plates

*Fare Table Displayed (HC only)

*Taxi Meter Reading

*Roof Sign (HC only)

*Fire Extinguisher

Type: Condition: Seal/Expiry Date:

*First Aid Kit

Condition: Seal/Expiry Date:

Seat and Floor Condition

Interior Trim Condition

Body Work Condition

Rear WiperA\ashers

Paint Work Condition

Doors/Locks

Access to seating

Windows Opening

Luggage Area

Spare Wheel & Jack/Brace

Interior Light

Reversing Light

Battery/\Wiring Condition

Transmission Condition

Engine Condition

Fuel System Condition

MOT
MOT expiry date

*PASS / FAIL

Failure of MOT will constitute an automatic failure of

the compliance test

MOT advisory items: Please attach copy to Licensing Authority copy of compliance check.

The vehicle has PASSED / FAILED the Council’'s compliance test for fithess as a licensed vehicle.

Tester's Name: .......cocooviiiiii i,

s [ ]

Page 21

SIGNAtUIE: ... e e



Appendix C

Caerphilly County Borough Council adopted an inspection standard in respect of the licensing
of Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles. A copy of the standard is available on the
Council’'s website or on request to licensing@caerphilly.gov.uk. The standard relates to
vehicle specification and testing standards and sets out the procedures and standards for
those who carry out inspections of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles, vehicle
proprietors, regulators and the travelling public who may find it useful as it details the
standards that vehicles are subjected to. The standard was initially approved at a meeting of
Caerphilly County Borough Council’s Licensing Committee on 11t December 2014.

Please note that the compliance test includes those elements covered by the MOT test and a
number of additional items which address comfort, cleanliness, public safety, etc. Any failure
of the MOT requirements will result in an automatic failure of the compliance check.

RENEWALS ONLY:
The vehicle must pass the compliance check prior to the licence expiry date if the vehicle
licence is to be renewed in a timely fashion.

Page 22



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

TAXI AND GENERAL COMMITTEE - 28TH SEPTEMBER 2022

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S LICENSING REQUIREMENTS
FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE (TAXI) AND PRIVATE HIRE
VEHICLES, DRIVERS AND OPERATORS

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR, ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT

| |

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To outline proposed changes to the council’s policy and Licensing Requirements for
Hackney Carriage (Taxi) and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Operators following
the publication of the Department for Transport (DfT) Statutory Taxi & Private Hire
Vehicle Standards and Welsh Government’s Harmonisation Guidance on Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Licensing in Wales.

1.2 To seek Members’ approval of the proposed changes following a period of
consultation in respect of Disclosure and Barring Service requirements affecting
drivers, vehicle proprietors and Private Hire Vehicle Operators and changes to
medical requirements for licensed drivers.

2. SUMMARY

2.1  The Licensing Authority is required to review its current requirements in line with
statutory Standards and Welsh Government’s recommended harmonisation
guidance. This report deals with proposals connected to Disclosure and Barring
Service requirements affecting drivers, vehicle proprietors and Private Hire Vehicle
Operators and changes to medical requirements for licensed drivers.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That Members note the content of the report and the need to review our existing
requirements, policies and conditions of licence in order to comply with Statutory
Standards and Welsh Government Guidance.

3.2 That Members approve the changes set out in this report to the Council’s policy in
relation to Disclosure and Barring Service requirements affecting drivers, vehicle
proprietors and Private Hire Vehicle Operators and changes to medical requirements
for licensed drivers. The changes to become effective for applications received on or
after the 29" September 2022.

Page 23



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To improve public safety, and provide clarity for the licensed trade and consistency
and standardisation across Wales.

To comply with Department for Transport (DfT) Statutory Standards.

THE REPORT

In July 2020 the Department for Transport (DfT) published Statutory Taxi & Private
Hire Vehicle Standards with the focus on protecting children and vulnerable adults.
The DfT state that following a detailed consultation it is clear there is a consensus
that common core minimum standards are required to better regulate the taxi and
private hire vehicle sector.

The DfT standards have effect in Wales even though responsibility for taxi and
private hire vehicle policy has been devolved to Welsh Government. However,
should the Welsh Government introduce legislation to regulate on these matters, the
DfT standards would cease to apply. Caerphilly CBC and all other licensing
authorities in the UK are expected to meet the minimum requirements of the DfT
Statutory & Best Practice for taxi and private hire licensing or explain why they do
not.

In March 2021, the Welsh Government published the Harmonisation of Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Licensing in Wales. This document follows the Welsh
Government’s white paper ‘Improving Public Transport’ published in 2018. The aim of
the recommendations contained in the document is to provide ‘quick fixes’ to improve
the consistency of licensing standards and increase public safety across Wales. The
recommendations form the basis for further development by Welsh Government into
national standards. This non-statutory guidance has been produced jointly between
the Welsh Government, the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and
representatives of local authorities across Wales via the Directors of Public
Protection Wales.

Adopting the recommendations will lead to increased public safety, consistency of
standards across Wales, harmonised enforcement, increased accessibility of
vehicles and better standards of customer service.

Some of the practices that are referred to in both documents have already been
implemented into Caerphilly CBC procedures / policies either in respect of our driver
policy or vehicle specification. Examples include the usage of the National Register
for Revocations and Refusals (NR3) and driver and operator Suitability Policy,
however some of the proposed changes will require our existing policies to be
subject to consultation and amendment.

DfT and Welsh Government Harmonised Standards had already been circulated to
drivers, vehicle proprietors and operators and to the Caerphilly County Borough Taxi
Driver Association in March and April 2021 to provide an insight into proposals.

A formal 4 week consultation exercise was undertaken in relation to matters
concerned with changes to Disclosure & Barring Service requirements and changes
to Medicals between the 11" May 2022 and 11" June 2022. The subjected matters
consulted upon and proposed revisions related to the following:

Page 24



5.8

59

5.10

511

e A 6 monthly DBS requirement for drivers (DBS to be specifically for the role of a
taxi / private hire vehicle driver)

Basic disclosure requirement for vehicle proprietors.

o Holders of Private Hire Vehicle Operator licences to undertake basic disclosures
of staff who have access to booking records or dispatch vehicles.

e Overseas Criminal Record Checks for applicants for Vehicle Licences & private
hire vehicle operator’s licence.

o Group 2 Medical undertaken by the applicant’s own general practitioner (GP) or
another GP at the applicant’s registered practice that has full access to their
medical records. (In exceptional circumstances, and only with prior agreement
from the Licensing authority, a medical assessment may be carried out by
another registered GP practice as long as the applicant’s full medical history has
been viewed and assessed by that GP.)

¢ Group 2 Medical to be required as follows: Upon application, every 5 years
between the ages of 45 and 65. Every year when the driver is aged 65 years or
over. Or anytime as required by the licensing authority or the medical practitioner.

¢ The medical will be valid for 4 months from the date the examining doctor,
optician or optometrist signs it.

The Consultation document circulated to drivers, vehicle proprietors and Private Hire
Operators is reproduced as information as Appendix 1. The following questions
were posed to licence holders.

Do you agree or disagree that all local authorities in Wales should have a standard
approach to taxi and private hire licensing?

Please give reasons for your answer.

Do you have concerns about any of the above proposals put forward by Welsh
Government / Department for Transport?

If yes, please tell us which proposals you are concerned about and why?

One of the significant changes that are proposed relate to a requirement for 6
monthly Disclosure and Barring (DBS) checks for drivers, primarily via the DBS
Update Service which will require drivers to take positive action to sign up to the
Update Service at next renewal of their licence. Provision is also catered for drivers
who are unable to join the Update service. In such instances, drivers will have to
provide an enhanced DBS check specifically required for the role of a taxi driver
every 6 months. Drivers that fail to do so will have their licences suspended and will
not be able to drive a licensed vehicle. The proposed amendment to the policy will
mean that drivers will no longer be able to undertake their Enhanced DBS check via
the Integrated Transport Unit.

A new proposal will require applicants for hackney carriage and private hire vehicle
licences to provide a basic Disclosure and Barring Service check as part of their
application to assess their fithess and suitability.

A new proposal will require holders of Private Hire Vehicle Operator licences to
undertake basic disclosures of staff who have access to booking records or dispatch
vehicles. Currently no such measures exist in relation to persons handling sensitive
and personal information about travel arrangements.

New Applicants and existing licensed drivers will be required to undertake Group 2
Medicals in line with the requirements detailed in Paragraph 5.7 above. The existing
discretion afforded to holders of PSV Licences not to provide a medical on grant of
licence a hackney carriage / private hire vehicle drivers licence or during the period of
licence will be removed.

Page 25



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

6.1

7.1

8.1

There were no responses to the consultation exercise undertaken.

A revised Caerphilly County Borough Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Vehicle Drivers Policy and Conditions containing the proposed amendments covered
by this consultation is reproduced for Members’ information as Appendix 2.

Future changes to legislation and guidance may have an impact on this policy and
licensing requirements. It is proposed that officers review the policy regularly and
amend as required for minor administrative purposes or to comply with changes in
legislation or statutory guidance. Any significant changes will be brought before this
committee for Member consideration.

A further consultation exercise will be undertaken with licence holders in relation to
additional matters detailed within the DfT statutory guidance and Welsh Government
Harmonised Standards. This will include items such as licensee self-reporting
requirements, cross border enforcement and requirements placed on proprietors of
Wheel Chair Accessible vehicles to ensure drivers can assist a passenger in a
wheelchair into and out of the vehicle and correctly secure the wheelchair in the
vehicle.

Conclusion

Members are asked to consider the comments above and to approve the changes to
the council’s policy for Hackney carriage / Private hire drivers, Vehicle proprietors
and Private Hire Vehicle Operators. Members are directed to the Taxi and Private
Guidance issued by Welsh Government and Statutory and best practice DfT
Guidance as to the basis when considering the proposals. Determination of these
proposed amendments rests with the Taxi and General Licensing Sub-Committee.

ASSUMPTIONS

No assumptions have been made in the preparation of this report.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

This report seeks to propose amendments to the Council’s policy for Hackney
Carriage / Private Hire Vehicle Driver, Vehicle Proprietor and Private Hire Vehicle
Operator licensing in respect of Disclosure and Barring Service requirements (DBS)
and Medical requirements for drivers.

The proposed changes are sought to bring about harmonisation of licensing policies
across Wales and to have regard to the DfT Standards, the council’s existing
licensed driver policy and conditions of licence will need to be revised to incorporate
the proposed changes. The changes recommended by both Welsh Government and
the DfT are to improve public safety, consistency of standards, harmonised
enforcement, increased accessibility of vehicles and better standards of customer
service.

Link to Integrated Impact Assessment

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There will be no financial implications to the council.

Page 26


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/iia-harmonisation-dft-standards

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no personnel implications.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 This report has been sent to the Consultees listed below and all comments received
are reflected in this report.

10.2 A consultation exercise was also undertaken with the taxi/private hire trade in the
borough in May and June 2022, however no responses were received.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

Author:
Date:

Consultees:

Appendices:
Appendix 1

Appendix 2

Lee Morgan Licensing Manager — morgall6@caerphilly.gov.uk
9" August 2022

ClIr Walter Williams, Chair, Taxi & General Licensing Committee

ClIr, Mike Adams, Vice Chair, Taxi & General Licensing Committee

Clir Philippa Leonard, Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection
Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director Economy and Environment
willims@caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure Services
Hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Jacqui Morgan, Trading Standards, Licensing and Registrars Manager
Morgaj4@caerphilly.gov.uk

Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer,
harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Donovli@caerphilly.gov.uk

Clive Campbell, Transportation Engineering Manager
campbc@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultation document circulated to drivers, vehicle proprietors and Private
Hire Operators

Revised Caerphilly County Borough Council Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Vehicle Drivers Policy and Conditions

Background Papers:

Taxi & General Committee 27" May 2021 Future Review of the Councils Licensing
Requirements for HC Taxi and PHV Drivers and Operators.pdf (caerphilly.gov.uk)

Taxi and private hire vehicles: licensing quidance | GOV.WALES

Statutory & Best Practice Guidance for taxi and PHV licensing authorities

(publishing.service.gov.uk)

Page 27


mailto:morgal16@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:Hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:campbc@caerphilly.gov.uk
https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s35421/Future%20Review%20of%20the%20Councils%20Licensing%20Requirements%20for%20HC%20Taxi%20and%20PHV%20Drivers%20and%20Operators.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s35421/Future%20Review%20of%20the%20Councils%20Licensing%20Requirements%20for%20HC%20Taxi%20and%20PHV%20Drivers%20and%20Operators.pdf?LLL=0
https://gov.wales/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicles-licensing-guidance
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/928583/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/928583/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english.pdf

Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 28



Consultation webpage APPENDIX 1

e Getinvolved Consultations Harmonised Standards for Taxi and Private Hire vehicle
licensing

Harmonised Standards for Taxi and Private
Hire vehicle licensing

We need to look at and make changes to the Council’s “Policy for Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers and Operators” because the
Welsh Government and the Department for Transport (DfT) have asked all
Councils to work to the same standards.

Taxi and private hire vehicles: licensing quidance | GOV.WALES
Statutory & Best Practice Guidance for taxi and PHV licensing authorities

(publishing.service.gov.uk)

To start with, we are looking at Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS)
requirements, Overseas Criminal Records checks, additional requirements
for Private Hire Operators and Driver Medicals and are proposing the
following changes.

What are the proposed changes and what will this mean for you and
new applicants?

A 6 monthly DBS requirement for all drivers.

When making their next grant or renewal application, drivers will either
need to join the DBS Update service or provide an Enhanced DBS Check
every 6 months. This DBS check will be specifically for the role of a taxi /
private hire vehicle driver. Drivers will no longer be able to obtain their DBS
via the Integrated Transport Unit. The cost of the joining the update service
is £13 a year.

A Basic disclosure requirement for vehicle proprietors upon
application. (This was not previously a requirement when making
applications for vehicle licences. Applicants that already hold a hackney
carriage or private hire driver licence with this authority are not required to
provide the basic disclosure as part of their application for a hackney
carriage/private hire vehicle licence.)

Overseas Criminal Record Check for applicants for Vehicle Licences &
private hire vehicle operator’s licence. (This is already undertaken for
drivers)

Page 29


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/involved
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/involved/Consultations
https://gov.wales/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicles-licensing-guidance
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/928583/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/928583/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english.pdf

Consultation webpage APPENDIX 1

Holders of Private Hire Vehicle Operator licences will have to undertake
basic disclosures of members of staff (not just drivers) who work for
them and access booking records or dispatch vehicles.

Where the applicant/operator employs or intends to employ persons
involved in taking bookings or the dispatch of vehicles, the operator must
produce a policy on the employment of ex-offenders in those roles.

The Private Hire Operator must maintain a register of all such

staff which shall include a record of when each DBS check has been
undertaken. This register must be available for inspection by an authorised
officer of the Licensing Authority upon request. The register should include
the following:

. the date that person’s employment in that role commenced

« the date the operator checked the DBS certificate

« the name of the person that checked the DBS certificate

. the date the person ceased to perform that role.

« The register must be retained for 6 months in line with the booking
records

« Should an employee cease to be on the register and later re-enter
the register a new basic DBS certificate (or use of the Update
Service) should be viewed by the operator.

The Operator must require that all staff employed in taking bookings or
dispatching vehicles to report to them within 48 hours of any conviction,
binding over, caution, warning, reprimand or arrest for any criminal matter
whilst they are employed in this role.

New applicants and existing drivers will need to provide a Group 2 Medical
undertaken by their own general practitioner (GP) or another GP at
the applicant’s registered practice that has full access to their medical
records. (In exceptional circumstances, and only with prior agreement from
the Licensing authority, a medical assessment may be carried out by
another registered GP practice as long as the applicant’s full medical
history has been viewed and assessed by that GP.)

A Group 2 Medical is needed:

« On application and
« Every 5 years between the ages of 45 and 65
« Every year when the driver is aged 65 years or over.

Page 30



Consultation webpage APPENDIX 1

« A Group 2 medical must also be undertaken if requested at any time
by the licensing authority or the medical practitioner.

The following provision within the existing driver policy will

be removed namely.... ‘Where the DVLA have required a satisfactory
Group 2 medical examination so as to entitle a driver to drive coaches and
lorries etc which is reflected on their DVLA licence, production of a
completed medical form may not be required by the LA’

Any medical submitted in support of an application will be valid for 4
months from the date the examining doctor, optician or optometrist signs it.

Page 31



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 32



APPENDIX 2

Caerphilly County Borough Council
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers / Private Hire Vehicle Operator Policy and
Conditions

The Policy was approved by the Licensing Committee on 5 December 2016.
Implemented 1%t January 2017
Amended by the Taxi & General Committee on 23 September 2019
(amendments to take effect 11" October 2019)

Amended by the Taxi & General Committee on ***DATE***** 2022
(amendments to take effect from **DATE***** 2022)

Further information can be obtained from:

Licensing Section, Ty Penallta, Tredomen Parc, Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed
Email: licensing@caerphilly.gov.uk

Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk

Page 33



CONTENTS

PAGE

Introduction

Aims of Licensing

Equalities and Human Rights

The Policy

Fit and Proper Considerations

Cautions, Warnings, Convictions and Endorsements

Fitness Criteria Policy

Fitness (Knowledge) Test

Equality and Disability Considerations

Discrimination

Immigration Status

Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Persons

Smoking in Vehicle

Littering

Medical Condition

Acceptable Standards of Dress

Actions that may compromise the fit and proper status of a licensed driver or
applicant

N[OOI BAIBRIOWININDN

Application Requirements

Licences

Conditions Attached to Licences

Right of Appeal

Hearings

Complaints and Enforcement

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix A Driver Application Requirements 12

Appendix B Fitness Criteria (drivers, operators & vehicle proprietors 186

Appendix C Hearing Procedures 264

Appendix D Dual Driver Conditions 286

Appendix E Hackney Carriage Byelaws 331

Appendix F Advice for Licensed Taxi Drivers 386
1

Page 34




INTRODUCTION

This document has been produced in accordance with the powers conferred by the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 as amended, which places on Caerphilly
County Borough Council as the Licensing Authority the duty to carry out its licensing functions
in respect of hackney carriage and private hire drivers.

In this Policy, the following abbreviations have been used:

Council / CCBC

Caerphilly County Borough Council

LA

Licensing Authority Caerphilly County Borough
Council

Policy

Caerphilly County Borough Council's Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Policy

Driver’s Licence

Dual Driver’s Licence

LG(MP)A Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976

TPCA Town Police Clauses Act 1847

EA Equalities Act 2010

DVLA Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency

DPM Data Protection Mandate

DFT Department for Transport

DBS - Disclosure and Barring Service (formerly CRB)

AIMS OF LICENSING

This policy sets out how the Council will deal with the licensing of hackney carriage and private
hire drivers and private hire vehicle operators.- The Council, will determine each application on
its merits, but will place public safety above all other considerations.

The aims are as follows:

o Ensure a driver is considered to be a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence in
that:
(1) the person does not pose a threat to the public;
(i) the public are safeguarded from dishonest persons;
(iii) the safeguarding of children, young and vulnerable persons;
o Ensure the safety of the public likely to be affected by the operation and use of hackney

carriage and private hire vehicle services.

o Encourage the provision of high quality and professional hackney carriage and private
hire services.

EQUALITIES AND HUMAN RIGHTS
The Equalities Act 2010 introduced measures to tackle discrimination encountered by disabled

people in certain areas including employment, and access to goods, facilities and services. The
applicant shall have regard to this legislation.

Page 35



The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 makes both Welsh and English the official
languages of Wales, and the Licensing Authority will ensure that it provides its services in
accordance with the Council’s current policies on Welsh language service provision and
production of bilingual material.

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and
makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with such a right. The
Licensing Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act when considering any licensing
issues, and particularly in respect of the way in which applications are considered and
enforcement activities are carried out.

The Council expects that in granting an authorisation the holder of that authorisation will take all
reasonable and practical steps to prevent and eliminate unlawful discrimination and to promote
equality of opportunity and good relations within and between staff, customers and visitors. This
is irrespective of a person’s ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability,
gender reassignment, religious beliefs or non-beliefs, use of Welsh language, BSL and other
languages, nationality, responsibility for any dependants or any other reason which cannot be
shown to be justified.

The Council ensures that it treats all individuals and organisations who are renewing or making
new applications for licencses, with equal respect both when corresponding with those
individuals and organisations, and during the licensing approval process and will do so in the
language or format of their choice, in line with the Council’s Strategic Equality Objectives.

The Council is satisfied that this policy satisfies the statutory requirements and where there are
restrictions, they satisfy the provisions on proportionality and balance of competing rights.

THE POLICY

This Policy aims to:

. Set out the Council’'s approach to regulation, enforcement and sanction of drivers and
operators;

. Define and offer guidance on the legislation in relation to the provision of hackney
carriage and private hire vehicles services by drivers; and

o Set out the licensing conditions applicable to drivers.

The policy also sets out the Council’s intentions in respect of the Equality Act, discrimination
and the safeguarding of children and vulnerable persons.

In exercising its discretion in carrying out its regulatory functions, the LA will have regard to this
Policy document and the aims set out above. The LA will also take into account Welsh
Government (WG), DFT or other recognised bodies Best Practice Guidance as they apply to
licensing of drivers.

Notwithstanding the existence of this Policy, each application or enforcement measure will be
considered on its own merits. Where it is necessary for the LA to depart substantially from the
Policy, clear and compelling reasons will be given.

3
Page 36



The Policy will be formally reviewed and updated, as and when required; however the Policy
and its appendices may also be changed in the interim period to accommodate changes in law,
corrections of errors and other triggers to policy change. The LA reserves the right to alter this
Policy to ensure compliance with the law as a minor policy change without further consultation.

The conditions stated within this Policy will apply to hackney carriage and private hire drivers.
This therefore means any licence or badge granted will be known as a Dual Licence and Dual
Badge. However, it shall be noted that within this document there are circumstances where
conditions relate specifically to private hire drivers and hackney carriage drivers.

FIT AND PROPER PERSON CONSIDERATIONS

The Council must be satisfied that a person is ‘fit and proper’ before a licence will be issued or
renewed, or during the course of a licence. The ‘fit and proper’ requirements are not defined in
law but the Council will consider a number of factors, including:

Cautions, Warnings, Convictions and Endorsements

Where offences leading to cautions, warnings, convictions and endorsements are committed, it
is important in the interests of consistency and transparency that a procedure should be in place
to consider what effect this should have on an application for the grant or renewal of a licence.
Drivers must report to the LA any cautions, warnings, convictions and endorsements issued
during the course of the licence (in line with licence conditions, which are set out at Appendix
D)

Under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 Act (as amended), criminal convictions can
become spent after a certain period of time, and once spent, for many purposes, may be
disregarded, however this is not necessarily the case in respect of taxi driver applications. When
considering a licence application, the Licensing Authority may take ‘spent’ offences into
consideration as to whether or not an applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence. The
Licensing Authority may consider all warnings, cautions, convictions, and additional information
on the DBS disclosure or information provided by the Police, if it is satisfied that justice cannot
be done except by taking them into account, including any spent convictions.

FITNESS CRITERIA POLICY FOR DRIVERS & OPERATORS

The LA will refer to its Fitness Criteria for Drivers and Operators Policy as attached at Appendix
B which outlines the principles and sanctions that will be applied, although each case will be
treated on its merit. The Fitness Criteria has been based upon the (April 2018) Institute of
Licensing Guidance on determining the suitability of applicants and licensees in the hackney
carriage and private hire trades.

The LA makes decisions on the balance of probabilities rather than beyond reasonable doubt.
The prime concern is to ensure public safety.

The Fitness (Knowledge) Test

Drivers must have a good working knowledge of the area within which they intend to work.
Therefore to maintain the high standards that the LA expects of its drivers, new applicants will
not be granted a licence until such time as the applicant has successfully passed this test. Where

4
Page 37



a licence is allowed to lapse for more than 12 months the applicant will be required to pass this
test. There may be very exceptional circumstances where an applicant may be exempt from the
requirement to undertake such a test, in such cases the matter should be carefully considered
by Licensing Officers who will recommend referral of such circumstances to the relevant
committee for consideration.

Equality and Disability considerations

The Council expects that all licensed drivers will euld comply with the terms of the Equality Act.
The Taxi_ and PHV (Disabled Persons) Act 2022Changes—are—anticipated—to—strengthen
legislation—by placesing a clear duty on taxi drivers to assist passengers with wheelchairs
(making it an offence to charge wheelchair passengers extra) and to assist persons with
disabilities. A government report suggests that local authorities should not issue licences until
such time as drivers can demonstrate they can comply with the terms of the Equality Act.

It is the Council’s intention to move towards ensuring that all drivers attain an acceptable level
of understanding and compliance with the terms of the Act. Details of any future requirements
to be placed on drivers in respect of ensuring compliance will be subject to the Licensing
Committee’s consideration and determination, this policy would be updated as necessary.

The Council will require all drivers to be compliant with the provisions of the Equalities Act 2010,
which has specific sections on private hire and hackney carriages not discriminating on the
grounds of disability, including the requirement to carry assistance dogs of disabled people.

Drivers are expected to have knowledge in safe methods of conveying disabled persons,
wheelchair bound or not. The Council encourages all drivers to attend training on dealing with
disabled people; this does not only include people in wheelchairs but knowledge of the needs
of people with a wide range of disabilities. Disabilities include; limited or restricted movement,
sight or hearing disabilities, learning difficulties and mental impairment. This list is not
exhaustive; the provisions of the current Equalities Act will be taken into account when
determining if a person is classed as disabled. Drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles are
advised to attend a recognised training course to ensure that they comply with health and safety
requirements not only in respect of handling and securing wheelchairs, but also to prevent any
risk to their own health arising from the handling of wheelchairs.

The council may review the licences of any driver who is found to be deficient in disability
awareness following a complaint or where the health of a disabled passenger is endangered by
the actions of the driver. The lack of training/knowledge on the part of the driver will not be
accepted as a defence to the allegation.

Discrimination

Discrimination of any form is unacceptable. An allegation of discrimination will be regarded as
extremely serious and may be reported to the police. The LA may then review the licence to
establish whether the holder remains a fit and proper person to hold such a licence.

Immigration Status

Foreign nationals are required to provide evidence to the Council regarding their immigration
status, in order that their eligibility to work and be granted a licence can be assessed. Further
detail is set out in Appendix A.

Page 38



Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Persons

The Council has serious concerns regarding the safeguarding of children and vulnerable
persons, and have reviewed the requirements in respect of safeguarding awareness of licensed
drivers and require training and attendance at courses as is considered appropriate or available
and attendance at refresher sessions as considered appropriate by the Council. Confirmation
of attendance will only be accepted from authorised officers of the Council or training providers
approved by the LA. Attendance at approved safeguarding awareness is a pre-requisite in
respect of the grant of a licence and refresher training is required to be undertaken every 3
years.

Smoking in vehicle

The LA will take a serious view where a driver smokes tobacco or any other substance, or
permits smoking in a licensed vehicle, as this demonstrates a clear disregard for the law and for
the health of both the driver and customer. Licensed drivers must be aware that smoking in a
licensed vehicle is prohibited. Where a driver is in contravention of smoking legislation, the issue
will be investigated and appropriate action taken.

Advisory- Drivers are advised that using Nicotine Inhaling Devices (NIDs) (commonly referred
to as electronic cigarettes) or similar devices in licensed vehicles may be mistaken for smoking
tobacco or any other like substance. Any changes to legislation prohibiting the use of these
devices in public places will be deemed to be a part of this policy. The LA considers that smoking
such devices does not promote the professional image expected of a licensed driver.

Littering

Drivers are advised that leaving litter or disposing of it from a vehicle (ie such as throwing
cigarette butts out of vehicle windows) are offences under the Environmental Protection Act
1990. Commission of such offences will render you liable to conviction, liability for which may
be discharged by payment of a fixed penalty notice, FPN. At the time of writing the policy the
fixed penalty is £100 reduced to £75 if paid within 7 days.

Medical Conditions

The licence holder shall notify the LA in writing without undue delay of any serious illness or
accident or deterioration in health occurring during the course of their licence, which may affect
their ability to drive a licensed vehicle safely.

The driver shall at any time, or at such intervals as the LA may reasonably require, produce a
certificate in the form prescribed by the LA signed by the licenceapplicant’s holders registered
medical practitioner to the effect that he/she is or continues to be physically fit to be a driver of
a vehicle. Any fees will be borne by the driver.

Acceptable Standards of Dress

CCBC is committed to encouraging the professional image of licensed drivers and considers
therefore that drivers must conform to a minimum standard of suitable clean clothing and that
they maintain appropriate levels of personal hygiene. It is expected that such standards will be
maintained at all times.

It is recognised that drivers may wear a head covering for religious purposes or personal
preference but such coverings must be clean. Any wording or motif upon clothing or headwear
must not be of an offensive nature.

6
Page 39



ACTIONS THAT MAY COMPROMISE THE FIT AND PROPER STATUS OF A LICENSED
DRIVER OR APPLICANT

Driver’s licence and badge will be supplied by the LA when they are satisfied the applicant is a
fit and proper person to hold such a licence. The following transgressions committed during the
course of a licence may render the driver as no longer fit and proper. The LA will take
appropriate action dependant on the circumstances. Minor or first time transgressions are likely
to attract a written warning, repeated or more serious conduct may lead to prosecution and/or a
review of the licence.

Where an offence has been committed and not listed within this Policy, the LA will deal with
each case in accordance with the Council’s Enforcement Policy, each matter being dealt with
on its own merit.

In any event each case will be considered on its own merits and will take into account any
mitigating factors.

1. Failure to comply with a reasonable request from an authorised officer.
The LA takes failure to comply with a reasonable request from an authorised officer
seriously.

2. Failure to report/declare a conviction/caution

The Council must be satisfied that licence holders or applicants are honest and truthful
persons, a serious view will be taken of failure to report or declare convictions or
cautions. Any actions to be taken in respect of failures to report/declare a conviction will
be determined on the severity of the offence, when committed and any other relevant
factors.

3. Failure to respond to interview request
The LA considers failure to respond to an officer’s request for an interview (excludes
interviews regarding potential offences which may lead to a prosecution where there is

a ——Ilegal right to refuse) to be serious as it may prevent the LA from investigating
. issues and complaints and shows a disregard for the safety of the travelling
public.
4. Failure to report an accident

It is anticipated that the onus is on the vehicle proprietor to report accidents to the LA,
however the driver (where not an owner driver) should also report such issues. A first
offence of failure to report an accident within the specified time will normally be dealt
with by issuing a written warning, in addition to any further action that may be
warranted by the nature of the accident or damage to the licensed vehicle.

5. Failure to show a duty of care

Drivers are expected to show a duty of care to both the passengers and any property
they carry in their vehicles. —

Page 40



10.

11.

12.

13.

Refusal to carry a passenger in a hackney carriage vehicle

In these circumstances the driver will be invited to state the reasons for the refusal.
Where the LA is satisfied that the driver had a justifiable reason then it is likely that no
further action will be taken.

Refusal to carry a guide or assistance dog in a hackney carriage vehicle

It is an offence to refuse to carry a guide or assistance dog (Disability Discrimination
Act —1995 s 37). A driver may hold a medical exemption certificate issued by the LA
which must be correctly displayed in the vehicle. Where no exemption exists, the driver
will have committed an offence.

Failure to display or wear badges

Drivers’ badges are issued in order that passengers can be assured that the Council
have determined that the driver has been considered to be a fit and proper person to
hold such a licence.

Rude or aggressive behaviour

Rude or aggressive behaviour would raise concerns regarding public safety. Where
allegations are received that the driver has displayed rude or aggressive behaviour the
matter will be investigated. Rude or aggressive behaviour includes the use of obscene
language and physical actions, belligerent or contentious communication.

Offence of knowingly or recklessly making a false statement.

[Includes omitting any material from the application form or any associated document
submitted with it.]

The LA considers this to be a serious offence as it indicates dishonesty on the part of
an applicant, consequently applications may be rejected dependant on the seriousness/
nature of the omission or false information.

Offence of an unlicensed driver to drive a licensed vehicle

Submission of an application for the grant of a licence does not entitle an applicant to
drive a licensed vehicle, and a driver will be unlicensed if they allow their licence to
lapse (failure to apply to renew a licence prior to the expiry date). It is an offence for an
unlicensed driver to drive a licensed vehicle under the LG(MP)A and TPCA
respectively. There are limited circumstances where such an action is permissible
in that an unlicensed person may drive a vehicle in connection with the testing of the
vehicle for statutory purposes or for the purpose of work necessary to keep the
vehicle in good order -(This may only be carried out by a qualified mechanic and no
passengers may be conveyed in the vehicle during the test). An unlicensed driver
who drives a licensed vehicle for any other purpose may be liable to prosecution.

Penalty points on a Driver’s (DVLA) Licence

Minor traffic offences (as set out in the fitness criteria document at Appendix B) leading
to an accumulation of 7 or more points on their DVLA driving licence, the licence may
be reviewed to determine whether the driver is showing a disregard for the safety of the
public and law.

Major traffic offences
Major traffic offences (as set out in the fithess criteria document at Appendix B) are
considered to be very serious.

8
Page 41



14.  Failure to provide the LA with most current DVLA licence
Where an expired DVLA licence is produced to the LA, without reasonable excuse,
indicates dishonesty. Applications may be rejected or the LA licence reviewed.

15. Failure to comply with the requirements of the Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
(Disabled Persons) Act 2022. Accept the carriage of any disabled person, provide
them with reasonable mobility assistance, and carry their mobility aids, all without
charging any more than they would for a non-disabled passenger. Provide any disabled
passenger who requests it with assistance to identify the vehicle they have booked, at
no extra charge.

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS
Application requirements are set out in Appendix A. These requirements may be amended to
reflect changes in legislation, policy, procedures as necessary.

LICENCES

The LA does not issue separate drivers’ licences in respect of private hire vehicles and hackney
carriages. Instead the LA issues a dual driver’s licence which gives the holder the flexibility to
drive either type of vehicle. The driver’s licence shall remain in force for a period of up to 3 years
(as prescribed by the Deregulation Act 2015) unless the LA specifies a lesser period as it
considers appropriate, revokes or suspends a licence.

Licence fees are normally reviewed on an annual basis by the LA, so as to achieve cost
recovery. Fees are published on the Council’s website.

The Council will endeavour to remind all licensed drivers of the expiry date of their driver’s
licence. Where a BBS-check-or-medical certificate is due at the time of renewal, the holder
should obtain a medical in sufficient time and produce the necessary documentation, to enable
the application to be determined prior to the licence expiry date, so as to ensure continuity of
licence.

These arrangements do not abrogate the holder’s personal responsibility to ensure that renewal
applications and any required documentation are submitted in good time, ahead of licence
expiry.- The procedures for both grant and renewal applications are set out in Appendix A

The badge and licence remain the property of the LA and must be returned at the expiry of the
driver’s licence. In any event, both must be returned to the LA should the licence be suspended
or revoked at the end of the appeal period (where an appeal is not upheld) unless suspended
or revoked with immediate effect.

Where a badge or licence has been damaged, lost or stolen this must be reported to the LA
immediately and a replacement obtained.

CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO LICENCES

Conditions may not be attached to a hackney carriage driver’s licence, however, many of the
requirements prescribed within the Hackney Carriage Byelaws are effectively hackney carriage
driver's conditions. The Byelaws are attached as Appendix E

9
Page 42



The LA may impose such additional conditions on a private hire driver’s licence as it considers
reasonable and necessary, the conditions are set out in Appendix D. The conditions are
considered reasonable, necessary and appropriate for all licensed drivers but it is accepted that
they may only be legally imposed when a licensed driver drives a private hire vehicle. As holders
of dual licences it is expected that all drivers will comply with these conditions.

Where the LA has serious concerns for the public’s safety, an immediate revocation of a driver's
licence may be necessary. In this instance, the LA may utilise its emergency procedure for
review of the licence holders continued suitability.

DBS checks, DVLA Checks and satisfactory medical certificates may expire during the course
of a licence, in which case the Council can no longer be satisfied that a person remains a fit and
proper person to hold the licence. Where documentation is required during the course of a
licence a condition will be attached to the licence requiring the submission of the required
document within 4 weeks of the date on which the document was required. Failure to comply
with the condition may jeopardise the licence in that the matter would be referred to a licensing
committee for determination.

RIGHT OF APPEAL

The following rights of appeal are provided by the LG(MP)A 1976-:
i.Appeal against refusal to grant a private hire driver’s licence or conditions imposed on
such a licence: Section 52
ii.Appeal against refusal to grant a hackney carriage driver’s licence: Section 59
iii.LAppeal against suspension, revocation or refusal to renew a hackney carriage or
private hire driver’s licence: Section 61

The statutory rights of appeal in connection with drivers are to the Magistrates’ Court. These
appeals can be both against a refusal to grant or renew a licence and in respect of a decision
to suspend or revoke a licence that is in existence, as well as a right of appeal against the
conditions that may be imposed on any such licence by the Licensing Authority.

Where an appeal is to be made to the Magistrates’ Court applicants must lodge an appeal within
a period of 21 days from the day on which the applicant was notified by the LA of any decision.
The obligation is on the aggrieved person to submit the appeal within the statutory time periods.

Section 52 of the Road Safety Act 2006 gives the LA the power to suspend or revoke a driver’s
licence with immediate effect where they are of the opinion that the interests of public safety
require such a course of action. The driver may still appeal against this decision but it shall be
noted that as this decision is immediate the driver is unable to drive in the appeal period.

HEARINGS

Hearings of the relevant Licensing Committee will take place in public save where the
Committee considers, that the hearing, or part thereof, be heard in private having regard to any
unfairness to a party that is likely to result from a hearing in public.

In reaching a decision, the committee will balance the public interest in the hearing taking place
in public against the public interest in ensuring that a party has a fair hearing.

10
Page 43



The committee are at liberty to reconsider at any point within the hearing whether the public
interest requires that a part of the hearing take place in the absence of the public or whether
documents which are being considered by the Committee should be excluded from publication
and make a ruling accordingly.

Hearing Procedure
The procedure to be followed at a hearing is notified to attendees prior to the hearing. The
procedure is attached at Appendix C

COMPLAINTS AND ENFORCEMENT

Inspections
Drivers shall be aware that any authorised officer of CCBC or any constable shall have the
power at all reasonable times to inspect and examine any licensed vehicle without prior notice.

Complaints against Officers of the Licensing Authority

All complaints against a member of the Licensing Team should be submitted in writing in the
first instance to the Licensing Manager. Dependant on the circumstances the complaint may be
referred to the Trading Standards and Licensing Manager. Complainants are also advised of
the Councils corporate complaints procedures which are detailed on the Councils website.
Complaints may be submitted on line or by telephoning 01443 864221.

Complaints against Drivers

Complaints received from members of the public regarding the conduct of drivers will be
considered and investigated. When a complaint is received in relation to safeguarding, the
CCBC safeguarding procedures will be followed.

In general, however, where a complaint is received authorised officers may:

Interview the complainant and take witness statements.

Investigate the matter by interviewing the driver/operator.

This may be done under caution where there is a likelihood of prosecution.

Consider the driver’s behaviour and public safety issues.

Consider the driver’s previous history.

Decide on whether to take no action, place the matter before the licensing committee
with a view to suspend or revoke the licence, suspend or revoke a licence with
immediate effect or issue a written warning.

These actions are not exhaustive. In cases where the public are at risk or public safety is
compromised, suspension or revocation will be with immediate effect. In cases of proven,
repeated or persistent breach of conditions the matter will be placed before the licensing
committee for their consideration and action taken as they consider appropriate.

Private Hire Vehicle Operators - requirements relating to staff

11
Page 44



Holders of Private Hire Vehicle Operator licences are required to undertake basic disclosures
of members of staff who work for them and access booking records or dispatch vehicles.

Where the applicant/operator employs or intends to employ persons involved in taking
bookings or the dispatch of vehicles, the operator must produce a policy on the employment of
ex-offenders in those roles.

The Private Hire Operator must maintain a reqister of all such staff which shall include a
record of when each DBS check has been undertaken. This register must be available for
inspection by an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority upon request. The register
should include the following:

« the date that person’s employment in that role commenced

« the date the operator checked the DBS certificate

« the name of the person that checked the DBS certificate

« the date the person ceased to perform that role.

e The reqister must be retained for 6 months in line with the booking records

« Should an employee cease to be on the register and later re-enter the register a new
basic DBS certificate (or use of the Update Service) should be viewed by the

operator.

The Operator must require that all staff employed in taking bookings or dispatching vehicles to
report to them within 48 hours of any conviction, binding over, caution, warning, reprimand or
arrest for any criminal matter whilst they are employed in this role.

APPENDIX A
DRIVER APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

In order to issue a driver’s licence the Council must be satisfied that the person is considered to
be a fit and proper person to hold such a licence. In order to assist the Council in making this
determination an applicant must satisfy the following application requirements.

. The applicant must have attained the age of 18 years of age;
o The applicant must attend in person.

12
Page 45



The applicants current DVLA licence be produced for examination

Complete and submit the Council’s prescribed application form;

Submit the application form comprising the elements listed below;

Pay to the Council, such fees as may be required for the issue of the licence; Where
payment is made by cheque, which is subsequently dishonoured, any licence will be
considered null and void.

Partial applications will not be accepted;

Produce the current driving licence issued under the Road Traffic Act 1988

Produce for examination a form of photographic identification, such as DVLA Drivers
Licence or passport;

In respect of the initial grant of a licence completion of a Caerphilly Council Enhanced
DBS check specifically for the role of a taxi /private hire vehicle driver.

Applicants must have the legal right to work in this country.

Applicants should be aware that Caerphilly County Borough Council is under a duty to
protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use the information provided
for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with other
bodies responsible for auditing or administering public funds for these purposes.
Applicants should be aware that the Licensing Authority has implemented the use of
and makes submissions to the National Register of Taxi Licence Refusals and
Revocations (NR3). The intention of this is to prevent drivers who have had a hackney
carriage or PHV licence revoked or an application for one refused, going to another
authority to dishonestly secure a licence by failing to disclose their previous licensing
history.

Application essential elements which must be submitted:

LA prescribed application form (completed)

Passport sized photograph - One recent colour passport sized photograph (as
required for passport photographs) must be submitted every three years.

The photograph must:

i.Be in sharp focus and clear;

ii.Have a strong definition between the face and background;

Hiii Be printed professionally (Photographs printed at home are not likely to be of an
acceptable quality);

Show full head, without any head covering, unless it is worn for religious
beliefs or medical reasons; and Show nothing covering the face.

Alternatively, Licensing Officers have the ability to take photographs at the council offices.

DVLA drivers licence (Photocard or paper) — checks will be made to ensure that the
most current DVLA issue has been produced. All applicants must have for at least 12
months held a full driving licence (not a provisional) issued by the DVLA, or the DVNLI
(Northern Ireland), for that class of vehicle, granted under Part Ill of the Road Traffic
Act, 1988 or Northern Ireland equivalent, authorising them to drive that class of vehicle.
Under the Driving Licences (Community Driving Licence) Regulations 1996, a full
driving licence issued by another EC/EEA state will count toward the grant of a licence
if the holder has held such a licence for the previous 12 months. In addition CCBC will

13
Page 46



require applicants who hold EC/EEA driving licences to have a GB counterpart
document. GB counterparts can be obtained free of charge from the DVLA on
submission of the form D9 which is available from www.dvla.gov.uk.

DVLA Check upon application and requirement to share online DVLA Code/Status
within 21 days of a request.

Enhanced DBS check In order to satisfy the authority that they are a fit and proper’
person, all applicants for the role of a hackney carriage / private hire vehicle driver will
undergo ar_Caerphilly CBC Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check
specifically for the role of a taxi/private hire vehicle driver, which includes a check of the
children and adult barred lists. For licensed drivers this check will be repeated every 6
months.

All applicants/licence holders must either sign up to the DBS Update Service and
maintain their subscription for the duration of their licence or provide an enhanced DBS
every 6 months. For those using the update service, the licence holder must give
permission for the Licensing Authority to undertake checks of their DBS status. Failure
to provide DBS information every 6 months will result in the Licence Authority
suspending a driver licence until such time the information is provided or is accessed.

Drivers wishing to submit a_new DBS application every six months, rather than using
the “DBS update service” will be required to take personal responsibility to make
appointment with the Licensing Authority for this purpose no later than 4 weeks before
the 6 months DBS check is due. Failure to provide a DBS by the required date will
result in Drivers Licence being suspended until such time a DBS is completed and
returned to the Authority by the DBS. As such, the Licensing Authority strongly advise
drivers to use the “DBS Update Service.”

It should be noted that the Authority will not facilitate portability of DBS checks from one
Public Body to another.

Drivers that fail to keep up-to-date payments of the DBS update service, will be
suspended till such time a DBS is supplied to the Licensing Authority

An applicant can subscribe to this service within 28 days of creating the subscription
using the form reference number. For further information on the update service please
visit DBS Update Service - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

-The Council will not accept DBS checks provided to the applicant as the result of being
requested by other organisations/Councils. With regard to the disclosure results or
information contained in disclosures, the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act (Exceptions)
(Amendment) Order 2002 amends the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions)
Order 1975 in relation to hackney carriage and private hire drivers. This amendment
includes the addition of drivers to the list of exempted occupations and allows the LA to
take into account all convictions (spent or otherwise); other relevant information disclosed

14
Page 47


http://www.dvla.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/dbs-update-service

at the Chief Officer of Police’s discretion; Simple Cautions; Fixed Penalty Fines and
Criminal Behaviour Orders, etc.

Foreign Nationals. With regard to the licensing of Foreign Nationals, the LA
recognises that the DBS disclosure will only provide information in respect of the time
the applicant has resided in the UK. In such circumstances and where there is a need
to check any potential criminal record, which will also include persons who have spent
more than 6 months living outside the UK, since their tenth birthday, the LA will require
the applicant to provide a Certificate of Good Conduct from the Embassy of the country
in which they were residing. Certificates of Good Conduct which are in a language other
than English will be required to be translated into English at the applicant’s expense by
an independent translation service and the translation must be verified.

Any-costs-ineurred-in-thisprocess-will-be-berne by-the-apphlecant—CCBC shall, however,

take all reasonable and proportionate steps to ensure that a foreign national driver is a
fit and proper person. The requirement for Certificate of Good Conduct will also apply to
Private Hire Vehicle Operators and Vehicle Proprietors. Each case shall be judged on
its merits.

Information regarding certificates of good conduct or similar documents from a number
of countries is available from: GOV.UK Criminal records checks for overseas

applicants.

In the event that an applicant is not able to obtain a certificate of good conduct, they
should not progress with their application and should contact the Licensing authority for
further information.

Overseas criminal history checks must have been obtained within the 6 month period
preceding the application.

Immigration/Right to Work Checks.

It is appropriate for LA’s to check up on an applicant’s eligibility/right to work before
granting a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire driver’s licence. CCBC will only grant a
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire driver’s licence to those who have the right to work
within the UK. Drivers will be required to provide evidence to the Authority regarding
their immigration status. Those drivers who have a right to work within the UK but have
lost evidence of this will be required to obtain written approval form the Home Office.
(Evidence and Enquiry Unit, Floor 12, Lunar House, Wellesley Road, Croydon CR9
2BY Tel: 020 8196 3011). Where an applicant satisfies all the criteria a licence shall
only be issued up until the date they are entitled to work within the UK. If an applicant
applies for a licence and does not have the right to work within the United Kingdom,
their details will be passed to the Border and Immigration Agency.

Further details can be found on: www.bia.homeoffice.gov.uk/employingmigrants

e Tax Conditionality checks - new applicants and existing drivers should note the

requirements in relation to HMRC Tax Conditionality requirements. Applicants / licence

15
Page 48


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/criminal-records-checks-for-overseas-applicants
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/criminal-records-checks-for-overseas-applicants
http://www.bia.homeoffice.gov.uk/employingmigrants

holders can find further information on Complete a tax check for a taxi, private hire or
scrap metal licence - GOV.UK (www.qgov.uk)

Driver Fitness Assessment (Knowledge) Test — Approved by Licensing
Committee 16 February 2015.

Proof of having passed the fitness (knowledge) test — applies to new applications. On
first application (or where a licence has lapsed for more than 12 months) evidence is
required that the applicant has passed the knowledge test approved by the LA for
the CCBC area.

The test comprised of the following: - a pass certificate in respect of the fithess
(knowledge) test.

Section 1 — Basic Skills assessment covering literacy and numeracy.

Section 2 — Verbal Communication and Comprehension Test

Section 3 — Law and Conditions — This will involve all applicants being tested on the basic
requirements of hackney carriage and private hire licensing laws and conditions laid
down in this Policy.

Section 4 — Knowledge of the County - Candidates will need to identify places within the
County selected at random.

The applicant shall pay all requisite fees in respect of the test to the test provider.

Safeguarding Awareness. Approved by Licensing Committee on the 30" June
2016.
Have attended a safeguarding awareness course approved by the Council.

+——Medical certification—Appreved-by Licensing-Committee-on-the- 28 May
e

e _On first application, produce a CCBC medical form (equivalent to the DVLA
Group 2 ——medical) completed by the applicants own GPa_or another GP at the
applicants registered practice that has full access to their medical records. (In
exceptional circumstances, and only with prior agreement from the Licensing authority,
a medical assessment may be carried out by another reqistered GP practice as long as
the applicant’s full medical history has been viewed and assessed by that GP.)registered

Payment of any fee in respect of obtaining the medical certificate shall be borne by the
applicant.

A Group 2 Medical is needed:

16
Page 49



+ On application and

e Every 5 years between the ages of 45 and 65

« Every year when the driver is aged 65 years or over.

« A Group 2 medical must also be undertaken if requested at any time by the licensing
authority or the medical practitioner.

Any medical submitted in support of an application will be valid for 4 months from the
date the examining doctor, optician or optometrist signs it.

All licence holders are required to inform the licensing authority of any illness or condition
that affects their ability to drive.

reguired-annually—Reference should be made to the DVLA Medical Examination
Report D4 information booklet (available from www.dvla.gov.uk) for a list of the medical
conditions they-that may prevent an applicant from being certified medically fit to drive a
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle. The Medical Practitioner must also refer to the
“At a glance guide to the current medical standards of fitness to drive” also available
from the DVLA before submitting a result of the examination.

The Council may require the Applicant to produce additional information certifying that
they are physically fit to be the driver of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle.

Be aware that persons granted a licence to drive hackney carriages and private hire
vehicles must carry passengers accompanied by guide, hearing and certain prescribed
assistance dogs, unless medical evidence is supplied by his/her own general practitioner
or specialist in support of an application for exemption from that requirement.

Additional Information. Provide such other information as may be required by the
Council and comply with such other requirements as the Council may from time to time
consider reasonably necessary. New and existing drivers may be required to evidence
attendance at appropriate courses or training as determined by the Council.

Applicants are advised that the Council has the power to suspend, revoke or refuse to
renew a licence where a licence has been obtained by giving false or incomplete
information, as well as potential prosecution for the offence committed.

17
Page 50


http://www.dvla.gov.uk/

Unlicensed driving of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles is an offence.

Therefore, any person found driving without a hackney carriage/private hire vehicle
driver’s licence may be prosecuted.

APPENDIX B

GUIDANCE ON DETERMINING THE SUITABILITY OF APPLICANTS AND LICENSEES IN
THE HACKNEY AND PRIVATE HIRE TRADES

1.0 Introduction

1.1  The purpose of this document is to provide guidance on the criteria taken into account
by the council when determining whether or not an applicant or an existing licence
holder is a fit and proper or safe and suitable person to hold a licence.

1.2  The purpose of hackney carriage and private hire licensing is to protect and ensure the
safety of the travelling public; there are many instances where an application will be
refused, or a licence or revoked or suspended if the person falls short of the fit and

18
Page 51



1.3

1.4

15

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0
3.1

4.0

proper test. Case law makes it clear that the impact of losing (or not being granted) a
driver’s licence on the applicant and his family is not a consideration to be taken into
account.

The Licensing Authority makes decisions on the balance of probabilities rather than
beyond reasonable doubt.

It is recognised that these guidelines are not legislation, it is however, the Authority’s
baseline for acceptability. As such, it will only be departed from in exceptional
circumstances and for justifiable reasons which should be recorded.

Where licensing officers have delegated powers to grant licences, they will utilise
these guidelines when making a decision to grant a licence. In all other cases
applications for licences will be referred to the licensing committee/panel (or other
relevant decision-making body).

Powers

Powers to grant driver/operator licences are contained within Section 51, Section 55
and Section 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (the
Act).

Powers to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a driver’s licence are contained within
Section 61 of the Act, where the applicant/licence holder has been convicted of an
offence involving dishonesty, indecency, violence; failure to comply with the provisions
of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847; failure to comply with the provisions of Part
Il of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; or any other
reasonable cause.

Section 61 (2B) allows the Licensing Authority, if it appears that in the interests of public
safety, to suspend or revoke a driver’s licence with immediate effect. A Decision Notice
explaining why this decision has been taken will be issued to the driver and will have
effect when the notice is given to the driver. The driver may appeal this decision but may
not drive during the appeal period.

Section 62 of the Act allows the Licensing Authority to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew
an operator’s licence if the applicant/licence holder has been convicted of an offence
under or non-compliance with the provisions of Part Il of the Act; or grounds of any
conduct on the part of the operator which appears to the Council to render him unfit, or
due to any material change since the licence was granted in any of the circumstances of
the operator on the basis of which the licence was granted or any other reasonable
cause.

The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions)(Amendment) Order 2002, allows
the Licensing Authority to take into account all convictions recorded against an
applicant or the holder of a private hire vehicle or hackney carriage driver’s licence,
whether spent or not. Therefore the Licensing Authority will have regard to all relevant
convictions, particularly where there is a long history of offending or a recent pattern of
repeat offending.

Appeals

Any applicant who has been refused a driver/operator licence, or a licensed driver/
operator whose licence has been suspended or revoked has a right to appeal to the
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of receipt of the notice.

Considerations

19
Page 52



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

One common misunderstanding is that if the offence was not committed when the
driver was driving a taxi, it is much less serious, or even if it was in a taxi but not when
passengers were aboard. This is not relevant: speeding is dangerous, irrespective of
the situation; drink driving is dangerous, irrespective of the situation; bald tyres are
dangerous, irrespective of the situation. All these behaviours put the general public at
risk. Violence is always serious. The argument that it was a domestic dispute, or away
from the taxi, is irrelevant. A person who has a propensity to violence has that potential
in every situation. Sexual offences are always serious. A person who has in the past
abused their position (whatever that may have been) to assault another sexually has
demonstrated completely unacceptable standards of behaviour.

Applicants may claim that they have sought employment in other fields and been
precluded as a result of their antecedent history particularly if that contains convictions.
They therefore seek to become a licensed driver as an occupation of last resort. This is
unacceptable as the granting of a licence would place such a person in a unique
position of trust. The paramount responsibility of a licensing authority is to protect the
public, not provide employment opportunities.

Licensees are expected to demonstrate appropriate professional conduct at all time,
whether in the context of their work or otherwise. Licensees should be courteous, avoid
confrontation, not be abusive or exhibit prejudice in any way. In no circumstances
should Licensees take the law into their own hands. Licensees are expected to act with
integrity and demonstrate conduct befitting the trust that is placed in them.

Guidance on Determination

There are 5 types of licence: hackney carriage vehicle; private hire vehicle; hackney
carriage driver, private hire driver (this authority adopts a dual badge for drivers that
permits them to drive a private hire vehicle and a hackney carriage vehicle) and private
hire operator. In relation to all of these licences, the authority has the discretion to
grant, revoke and suspend a licence.

Drivers and operators cannot be granted a licence unless the authority is satisfied that
they are a “fit and proper person” to hold that licence (see Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 s51 and 59 in respect of drivers; s55 in respect
of operators).

There are no statutory criteria for vehicle licences, therefore the authority has an absolute
discretion over whether to grant either a hackney carriage or private hire proprietor’s
licence.

“Fit and proper” means that the individual (or in the case of a private hire operator’s
licence, the limited company together with its directors and secretary, or all members of
a partnership) is “safe and suitable” to hold the licence.

In determining safety and suitability the licensing authority is entitled to take into
account all matters concerning that applicant or licensee. They are not simply
concerned with that person’s behaviour whilst working in the hackney carriage or
private hire trade. This consideration is far wider than simply criminal convictions or
other evidence of unacceptable behaviour, and the entire character of the individual will

20
Page 53



5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

be considered. This can include, but is not limited to, the individual’'s attitude and
temperament.

Convictions for attempt or conspiracy will be regarded as convictions for the Convictions
substantive crime. A caution is regarded in exactly the same way as a conviction. Fixed
penalties ——and community resolutions will also be considered in the same way as a
conviction.

It is important to recognise that matters which have not resulted in a criminal conviction
(whether that is the result of an acquittal, a conviction being quashed, decision not to
prosecute or an investigation which is continuing where the individual has been bailed)
can and will be taken into account by the licensing authority. In addition, complaints
where there was no police involvement will also be considered. Within this document,
any reference to “conviction" will also include matters that amount to criminal behaviour,
but which have not resulted in a conviction.

In the case of any new applicant who has been charged with any offence and is
awaiting trial, the determination will be deferred until the trial has been completed or the
charges withdrawn. Where an existing licensee is charged, it will be for the licensing
authority to decide what action to take in the light of these guidelines.

In all cases, the licensing authority will consider the conviction or behaviour in question
and what weight should be attached to it, and each and every case will be determined
on its own merits, and in the light of these guidelines.

Any offences committed, or unacceptable behaviour reported whilst driving a hackney
carriage or private hire vehicle, concerning the use of a hackney carriage or private hire
vehicle, or in connection with an operator of a private hire vehicle will be viewed as
aggravating features, and the fact that any other offences were not connected with the
hackney carriage and private hire trades will not be seen as mitigating factors.

As the licensing authority will be looking at the entirety of the individual, in many cases
safety and suitability will not be determined by a specified period of time having elapsed
following a conviction or the completion of a sentence. Time periods are relevant and
weighty considerations, but they are not the only determining factor.

In addition to the nature of the offence or other behaviour, the quantity of matters and
the period over which they were committed will also be considered. Patterns of
repeated unacceptable or criminal behaviour are likely to cause greater concern than
isolated occurrences as such patterns can demonstrate a propensity for such behaviour
or offending.

Most applicants or licensees will have no convictions and that is clearly the ideal
situation. In relation to other people, it is accepted that human beings do make
mistakes and lapse in their conduct for a variety of reasons, and it is further accepted
that many learn from experience and do not go on to commit further offences.
Accordingly, in many cases an isolated conviction, especially if committed some time
ago, may not prevent the grant or renewal of a licence.

21
Page 54



5.14

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

It is also important to recognise that once a licence has been granted, there is a
continuing requirement on the part of the licensee to maintain their safety and
suitability. The licensing authority has powers to take action against the holder of all
types of licence (driver’s, vehicle and operator’s) and it must be understood that any
convictions or other actions on the part of the licensee which would have prevented
them being granted a licence on initial application will lead to that licence being
revoked.

Any dishonesty by any applicant or other person on the applicant’s behalf which is
discovered to have occurred in any part of any application process (e.g. failure to
declare convictions, false names or addresses, falsified references) will result in a
licence being refused, or if already granted, revoked and may result in prosecution.

As the direct impact on the public varies depending upon the type of licence applied for
or held, it is necessary to consider the impact of particular offences on those licences
separately. However, there are some overriding considerations which will apply in all
circumstances.

Generally, where a person has more than one conviction, this will raise serious
guestions about their safety and suitability. The licensing authority is looking for safe
and suitable individuals, and once a pattern or trend of repeated offending

is apparent, a licence will not be granted or renewed.

Where an applicant/licensee is convicted of an offence which is not detailed in this
guidance, the licensing authority will take that conviction into account and use these
guidelines as an indication of the approach that should be taken.

These guidelines do not replace the duty of the licensing authority to refuse to grant a
licence where they are not satisfied that the applicant or licensee is a fit and proper
person. Where a situation is not covered by these guidelines, the authority must
consider the matter from first principles and determine the fithess and propriety of the
individual.

New applications together with reviews of licences will be determined in line with the
principles set out below. New applications will either be granted or refused. Reviews of
licences can result the issuing of a warning, no further action or the
suspension/revocation of the licence.

Drivers

5.22

5.23

As the criteria for determining whether an individual should be granted or retain a
hackney carriage driver’s licence are identical to the criteria for a private hire driver’s
licence, the two are considered together.

A driver has direct responsibility for the safety of their passengers, direct responsibility
for the safety of other road users and significant control over passengers who are in the
vehicle. As those passengers may be alone, and may also be vulnerable, any previous
convictions or unacceptable behaviour will weigh heavily against a licence being
granted or retained.

22
Page 55



5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

As stated above, where an applicant has more than one conviction showing a pattern or
tendency irrespective of time since the convictions, serious consideration will need to
be given as to whether they are a safe and suitable person.

In relation to single convictions, the following time periods should elapse following
completion of the sentence (or the date of conviction if a fine was imposed) before a
licence will be granted.

Crimes resulting in death

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the
death of another person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another
person they will not be licensed.

Exploitation

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, or
has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual
irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be
licensed. This includes slavery, child sexual exploitation, grooming, psychological,
emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an exhaustive list.

Offences involving violence

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence, or connected with any
offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed
since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Possession of a weapon

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other weapon
related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the
completion of any sentence imposed.

Sex and indecency offences
Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with illegal
sexual activity or any form of indecency, a licence will not be granted.

In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any applicant
who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any ‘barred’ list.

Dishonesty

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence of dishonesty, or any offence
where dishonesty is an element of the offence, a licence will not be granted until at
least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Drugs

Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or
possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply, a
licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of
any sentence imposed.

23
Page 56



5.33

5.34

5.35

5.36

———Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the
possession of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. In these circumstances,
any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at their own expense to
demonstrate that they ——are not using controlled drugs.

Discrimination

Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in any
form, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion
of any sentence imposed.

Motoring convictions

Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the
responsibility of carrying the public. Any motoring conviction demonstrates a lack of
professionalism and will be considered seriously. It is accepted that offences can be
committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not
prohibit the grant of a licence or may not result in action against an existing licence.
Subsequent convictions reinforce the fact that the licensee does not take their
professional responsibilities seriously and is therefore, not a safe and suitable person to
be granted or retain a licence.

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs/using a hand-held
telephone or hand held device whilst driving

Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the influence of
drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the
completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. In these circumstances, any
applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at their own expense to demonstrate
that they are not using controlled drugs. Where an applicant has a conviction for using
a hand-held mobile telephone or a hand-held device whilst driving, a licence will not be
granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the conviction or completion of any
sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later.

Other motoring offences

A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is one which does not involve loss of life,
driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mobile phone, and
has not resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property (including vehicles).
Where an applicant has 7 or more points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or
similar offences, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since
the completion of any sentence imposed.

A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered above and also
any offence which resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property (including
vehicles). It also includes driving without insurance or any offence connected with
motor insurance. Where an applicant has a conviction for a major traffic offence or
similar offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since
the completion of any sentence imposed.

24
Page 57



5.37

5.38

5.39

5.40

Hackney carriage and private hire offences

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence concerned with or connected to
hackney carriage or private hire activity (excluding vehicle use), a licence will not be
granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence
imposed.

Vehicle use offences

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence which involved the use of a vehicle
(including hackney carriages and private hire vehicles), a licence will not be granted
until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Private Hire Operators

A private hire operator (“an operator”) does not have direct responsibility for the safety
of passengers, other road users or direct contact with passengers who are in the
private hire vehicle (except where they are also licensed as a private hire driver).
However, in performing their duties they obtain and hold considerable amounts of
personal and private information about their passengers which must be treated in
confidence and not revealed to others, or used by the operator or their staff for criminal
or other unacceptable purposes.

As stated above, where an applicant has more than one conviction, serious
consideration will need to be given as to whether they are a safe and suitable person.

Operators must ensure that any staff that are used within the business (whether
employees or independent contractors) and are able to access any information as
described above are subject to the same standards as the operator themselves. This
can be effected by means of the individual staff member being required by the operator
to obtain a basic DBS certificate. If an operator is found not to be applying the required
standards and using staff that do not meet the licensing authority’s overall criteria, that
will lead to the operator’s licence being revoked.

As public trust and confidence in the overall safety and integrity of the private hire
system is vital, the same standards will be applied to operators as those applied to
drivers, which are outlined above.

Vehicle Proprietors
Vehicle proprietors (both hackney carriage and private hire) have two principal
responsibilities.

Firstly, they must ensure that the vehicle is maintained to an acceptable standard at all
times. Secondly, they must ensure that the vehicle is not used for illegal or illicit
purposes.

As stated above, where an applicant has more than one conviction, serious
consideration will need to be given as to whether they are a safe and suitable person to
be granted or retain a vehicle licence.

25

Page 58



As public trust and confidence in the overall safety and integrity of the private hire
system is vital, the same standards will be applied to proprietors as those applied to
drivers, which are outlined above.

APPENDIX C
CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
TAXI AND GENERAL SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURES

This Is a Committee Hearing and Not a Court Of Law

Preliminary Matters

1. Members should consider the agenda items carefully and notify the Committee Clerk
immediately of any potential conflict of interest and return any documentation they may
have received as soon as possible to the Committee Section.

Copies of relevant documentation will be supplied to the Members prior to the hearing.
It is in the interests of applicants that any evidence upon which it is intended to rely is
made available to the Licensing Authority in advance. If any party seeks to
introduce at the hearing any oral or documentary evidence, which has not previously
been disclosed, the Committee will give appropriate weight to these items.

wnN

26
Page 59



Conduct of the Hearing

1.

wnN

The Chairman of the Committee will start proceedings by introducing the Members
and officers present. A final check will then be made to ensure none of the Members
have any conflict of interest with any applicant, other relevant person, or supporting
witness.

The Legal Advisor will then outline the procedure that will be followed at the Committee.
If any other persons are in attendance which the applicant wishes to address the
committee to represent them they will require the consent of the Committee to speak.
The Applicant and/or his representative/accompanying persons may then address the
Committee. The applicant and /or the representative/accompanying person may be
guestioned by the committee and any other parties present.

All parties will be given the opportunity to sum up before the committee retires to make
its decision. It is usual for the applicant/subject of the hearing to have the last word.
Applicant/subject of the hearing, accompanying persons and Licensing officer will not
be present whilst the committee makes its determination. All parties are expected to
remain within the confines of the building to await the result of the committee’s
determination.

Members may require an adjournment at any time during the course of the
proceedings to consider points of law, policy, etc

Evidence

1.

2.

Hearsay evidence is allowed, although the weight the Committee attaches to such
evidence may be less, given that it cannot be tested in cross examination.
Every application will be considered on its own merits.

Determination of the Application

1.

The Members will retire to make their decision. The Legal Advisor will accompany
Members and advise them on points of law, policy and procedure that may arise during
their deliberations The Legal Advisor will then explain the substance and nature of
advice that has been provided to all parties.

If once in private, Members need clarification they may return to open session to obtain
information, then re-resolve to return into private session.

The parties will generally be notified of the Members' decision at the conclusion of their
deliberations and advised of the rights of appeal.

Legal Advisor
The Committee will rely on its legal adviser as to matters of law and procedure.
This may include, but is not limited to:-

1.
2.
3.

Any relevant legislation, guidance or Council Policies.
Admissibility of evidence.
The rules of procedure arising because of general principles of administrative law.

27
Page 60



28
Page 61



APPENDIX D

CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS (DUAL)
LICENCES

LICENCE CONDITIONS

1.

The Licensee consents to 6 monthly A-Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks via
the DBS Update Service. Licence Holders who choose not to sign up to the Update
service will be required to provide an Enhanced DBS certificate every 6 months,
specifically for the role of Taxi driver completed with Caerphilly CBC Licensing Team.
Failure to provide a completed DBS certificate by the due date will mean that the licence

WI|| be suspended 4s—FeqH+Fed—en—me—Da$e—the—eheeleshaM-be—quemﬁted—te—me

A Group 2 DVLA standard medical certificate is required on the Date, the certificate shall
be submitted to the Licensing Office no later than 4 weeks after this date. {(Advisory—-
Failure to submit a medical certificate of fitness to drive a licensed vehicle, will result in

the Ilcence be|ng suspended %hen%aﬂeebeiﬂgﬂemeed-be#epe#feneaqﬂfablabl&&w&ng

The Licensee will share their DVLA code/DVLA status with the Licensing Authority
within 21 days following a request. Failure to do so will require the licensees’
attendance at Licensing Committee to consider the drivers fitness to hold a Hackney
Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Drivers licence.’

The Licensee shall not assign or any way part with the benefit of the licence, which is
personal to the Licensee, other than the licence must be delivered to the private hire
vehicle operator employing the driver and to be retained by him whilst such driver
remains in his employ.

The Licensee is advised that any private hire vehicle he may drive must be operated
through a private hire vehicle operator licensed with this Council.

The Licensee shall, when driving a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle, wear
such badge issued to the Licensee by the Council, in such a position and manner as to
be plainly and distinctly visible, bearing the number corresponding with the number
assigned to the Licensee in the register kept by the Council for that purpose.

The Licence may be suspended, revoked or not renewed by the Council:
29

Page 62



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

(i) if the driver commits an offence or otherwise fails to comply with the provisions of
Part Il of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976;

(i) if the driver has been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency or
violence;

(iii) if the driver becomes disqualified from driving under any of the Road Traffic in which
case the licence shall be automatically revoked;

(iv) on any other reasonable grounds.

The driver’s badge shall remain the property of the Council and if the driver’s licence is
suspended or revoked or the Council refuse to renew a driver’s licence such badge
shall be returned by the Licensee to the Council within seven days of a notice by the
Head of Public Protection, requesting the Licensee to do so.

Application for renewal of a licence must be made and determined before the expiry date,
to ensure ——continuity. There is no automatic period of grace and unlicensed driving is
an offence.

The licensee must throughout the period of his licence hold a valid driver’'s licence
under the Road Traffic Act 1988. If he/she is disqualified from holding a driving licence
for whatever reason, he/she must notify the Council immediately and return the badge
and licence.

The Licensee shall notify the Council forthwith of any change or deterioration to his/her
health during the period of his/her licence. The Council reserves the right to require an
existing licensee to produce medical evidence of continuing fitness to drive during the
period of the licence. Such medical evidence shall be produced by the licensee to the
Council within seven days of a notice by the Head of Public Protection requesting the
licensee to do so.

The Licence holder shall at the request of any Authorised Officer of the Council or any
Constable, produce for inspection his driver’s licence and/or badge, either forthwith or
before the expiration of five days beginning with the day following the date of request:-

(i) inthe case of a request of an Authorised Officer to the Head of Public Protection at
Penallta House, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach, CF82 7PG

(i) in the case of a request of a Police Constable at any Police Station within the
Council’s area and which is nominated by the Constable when the request is made.

The licence holder shall not cause or suffer or permit to be conveyed in a hackney
carriage or private hire vehicle a greater number of persons exclusive of the driver
than the number of persons specified in the licence issued and displayed on the
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence plate issued by the Council in respect of
that vehicle.

The Licence Holder shall not:

0] Behave in an uncivil or disorderly manner, and shall not use abusive language or
gestures to the general public, pedestrians, other road users or any other person

(i) Conduct themselves in a manner that causes offence, nuisance, or actions that
may present a hazard to members of the public or passengers

(i)  Drink or eat whilst carrying fare paying passengers in the vehicle

30
Page 63



(iv)  Without the consent of passengers, shall not use any radio, CD or MP3 or other
sound reproducing instrument or equipment in the vehicle

(V) Consume alcohol at any time whilst driving or being in charge of a hackney
carriage or private hire vehicle. (Advisory: Consumption of alcohol during or prior
to driving a taxi may result in loss of the licence.)

(vi) Drive a vehicle unless he/she understands how to safely operate/install any
equipment to make the vehicle accessible by disabled persons.

(vi)  Use a hand held microphone or telephone handset whilst the vehicle is moving.
Drivers shall only speak into a fixed neck sling or clipped on microphone or other
suitable hands-free or Bluetooth type system, so as not to distract their attention
from the road. Drivers must not stop on the hard shoulder of a motorway to answer
or make a call (unless it is to dial 999), however urgent. It is a criminal offence to
use a hand held mobile phone whilst driving and any such offence might impact
upon the driver’s fitness to hold a driver’s licence.

(vii)  Without consent of the hirer of the vehicle convey or permit to be conveyed any
other person in that vehicle.

15.  The driver shall notify the LA in writing within 7 days of any change of his/her ——name,
address or telephone number whether of a temporary or permanent nature.

16.  The licence holder shall be clean and respectable in his/her dress and person.

Vehicle

17. The licence holder shall:

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

() at all times maintain his/her vehicle in a roadworthy and clean condition both
internally and externally. The driver must carry out a spot check on the vehicle
lights and condition of tyres in particular, before using the vehicle.

ensure that the appropriate insurance cover is in force covering him/her to drive such
vehicle. Where an insurance cover note has effect the driver shall, on expiry of that cover
note, provide evidence to the LA of the new period of cover. It is the responsibility of the
driver to provide the LA with a current and valid copy of their insurance policy and/or
cover note and to ensure they have the appropriate insurance cover in place. In
accordance with Section 60 of the LG(MP) A failure to provide this insurance cover to the
LA will result in a suspension notice being served. The suspension shall remain in place
until such time as the LA receives documentary evidence of valid and adequate
insurance.

that the licence plate affixed to the front and rear of the vehicle does not become
concealed from public view or be so damaged or defaced as to render it illegible.

the driver shall ensure that the licence plate is not removed from the vehicle at any
time unless an authorisation of exemption has been granted.

Equality Act 2010

18.

All drivers will be required to make themselves fully aware of their responsibilities and
duties required of them under the Equalities Act to promote equality and opportunity for
disabled people.

Obligations in respect of passengers/customers

31
Page 64



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

If he/she is aware that the vehicle has been hired to be in attendance at an appointed
time and place or he/she has otherwise been instructed by the operator or proprietor of
the vehicle to be in attendance at an appointed time and place, punctually attend at that
time and place, unless delayed or prevented by sufficient cause. If the vehicle is to be
delayed every effort should be made to contact the passenger and inform them of the
reason for the delay. In addition, if the passenger is not immediately available the

driver shall make all reasonable efforts to contact that passenger.

The driver when hired to drive to any particular destination shall, subject to any directions
or request made by the hirer, proceed to that destination by the shortest direct route.

The driver shall drop off passengers in a safe zone and shall not permit passengers to
alight onto a road where it can be avoided.

The driver shall not make any advances to passengers that could be construed as an
attempt to procure any special relationship or sexual activity.

The driver shall:

0] at all times comply with all reasonable requirements of any person hiring or
being conveyed in the vehicle.

(i) when requested by the hirer convey a reasonable quantity of luggage;

(i) the driver shall afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading any

luggage or passenger belongings, including assistance in removing it to and from
the entrance of any house or other place where he collects or sets down his
passenger;

(iv) if requested by the hirer of a vehicle, provide him/her with a written receipt for the
fare paid.

The driver shall immediately after the termination of any hiring, carefully search the
vehicle for any property that may have been accidentally left therein, and if such
property is found, take the same within 48 hours, if not sooner claimed by, or on behalf
of its owner, to the Head of Public Protection, Penallta House, Tredomen Park, Ystrad
Mynach, Hengoed, CF82 7PG whereupon the Licensee will be given a receipt for the

property.

Taxi meters

25.

Where a vehicle is fitted with a taximeter, the driver shall not cause the fare recorded
thereon to be cancelled or concealed until the hirer has had reasonable opportunity of
examining it and has paid the fare (unless credit is to be given).

Convictions

26.

The driver shall notify the LA as soon as is reasonably practicable, and in any event
within 72hours, of full details of any convictions, sentencing, fixed penalty fines, driving
penalty points, cautions, warnings, binding over or reprimands imposed on him/her
during the period of licence. In addition, the driver shall notify the LA of any sentences
imposed on him.

The Carriage of Animals

27.

A driver must not carry in a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle any animal, which
belongs to, or is being looked after by, himself or herself, the owner or operator of the

32
Page 65



28.

29.

vehicle whilst it is being used as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle. Animals in
the custody of passengers may be carried, at the driver’s discretion, provided they are
restrained in a safe manner and do not cause an obstruction to the driver.

A driver must, however carry assistance dogs as defined in the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995 regulations without any additional payment unless they are in possession of an
exemption from this condition issued by the LA. (A certificate of exemption will be granted
upon the production of suitable medical evidence. If the exemption is being applied for
on the grounds of a chronic phobia of dogs, a psychiatrist or clinical psychologist must
provide the report.)

The driver of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle who has been issued with an
exemption certificate must exhibit the notice of exemption in a vehicle by either, fixing it
to the windscreen, facing outwards, or fixing it in a prominent position on the dashboard.
[If the driver of a hackney carriage forges or makes a false statement in respect of an
exemption certificate, he/she will be guilty of an offence. If the driver of a private hire
vehicle forges or makes a false statement in respect of an exemption certificate, he/she
will be in breach of his/her licence conditions and may render his/her licence liable to
suspension or revocation.]

Accidents

30.

The driver shall report all accidents to the LA as soon as is reasonably practicable but in
any event within 72 hours of the occurrence of any such accident that may have caused
damage materially affecting the safety, performance or appearance of the vehicle or
comfort or convenience of persons carried therein. Any driver reporting an accident will
normally be required to present the vehicle for inspection at the Licensing Office upon
request.

Private Hire Vehicles

31.

32.

33.

34.

Private Hire Vehicle drivers are only permitted to take passengers who have pre-booked
their journey via a licensed operator.

The driver of a private hire vehicle shall not park on, drop off or pick up at any taxi rank for
any reason during the operation times of such rank.

The driver of a private hire vehicle shall not ply for hire on any public or private road, or
tout or solicit any person to hire or to be carried in his/her private hire vehicle. The driver
shall not accept any offer of immediate hire whilst the driver or vehicle is on the road or in
any other public place.

The driver shall not demand from any hirer of a vehicle a fare in excess of any
previously agreed for that hiring between the hirer and the operator.

Hackney Carriages

35.

The driver shall not demand from any hirer of a vehicle a fare in excess of any
previously agreed for that hiring between the hirer and the operator or if the vehicle is
fitted with a taxi meter and there has been no previous agreement as to charging a
lesser fare, the fare shown on the taxi meter.

33
Page 66



APPENDIX E

HACKNEY CARRIAGE BYE LAWS

Made under Section 68 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and Section 171 of the Public
Health Act 1875 by the Council of the County Borough of Caerphilly with respect to hackney
carriages in Caerphilly County Borough.

INTERPRETATION
1. Throughout these byelaws:-

“THE COUNCIL” means the Council of the County Borough of Caerphilly

“TABLE OF FARES” means the table of fares fixed by the Council under Section 65 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

“THE COUNTY BOROUGH” means the County Borough of Caerphilly.

PROVISIONS REGULTING THE MANNER IN WHICH THE NUMBER OF EACH HACKNEY
CARRIAGE CORRESPONDING WITH THE NUMBER OF ITS LICENCE, SHALL BE
DISPLAYED

2. The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall:-
(@) cause to be affixed on the outside and inside of the carriage the plates and disc
provided by the Council on which shall be marked the number of the licence granted

in respect of such carriage in a manner as follows, namely:-

i. The exterior plate shall be fixed and displayed outside and on the rear of the vehicle
and be at all times clearly visible from the rear and be maintained in a clean condition:

ii. The interior plate shall be fixed on the inside of the carriage in such a position as to
be easily observed by the passengers:

iii. The licence disc to be fixed and displayed inside the vehicle on the lower left hand
corner of the windscreen in order to be clearly visible from the front of the carriage by
persons outside the vehicle.

(b) The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall:-

34
Page 67



i. not wilfully or negligently cause of suffer any such number to be concealed from public
view while the carriage is standing or plying for hire;

ii. not cause or permit the carriage to stand or ply for hire with any such painting,
marking or plate so defaced that any figure or material particular is illegible.

PROVISIONS REGULATING HOW HACKNEY CARRIAGES ARE TO BE FURNISHED OR

PROVIDED

3. The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall:-

(@) Provide sufficient means by which any person in the carriage may communicate  with

the driver;

(b) Cause the roof or covering to be kept water-tight;

(c) Provide any necessary windows and a means of opening and closing not less than
one window on each side;

(d) Cause the seats to be properly cushioned or covered;

(e) Cause the floor to be provided with a proper carpet, mat or other suitable covering;

() Cause the fittings and furniture generally to be kept in a clean condition, well
maintained, and in every way, fit for public service;

(g) Provide means for securing luggage if the carriage is so constructed as to carry
luggage;

(h) Provide an efficient fire extinguisher and first aid kit which shall be carried in such a
position as to be readily available for use;

() Provide and maintain an electric light in the interior of such carriage:

() Carry a spare wheel and tyre and suitable tools for the replacement of damaged or
punctured tyres;

(k) Provide at least two doors for the use of persons conveyed in such carriage and a
separate means of ingress and egress for the driver.

4. The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause the same to be provided with a
taximeter so constructed, attached and maintained as to comply with the following
requirements, that is to say:-

(&) The taximeter shall be fitted with a key, flag or other devise, the operation of which

will bring the machinery of the taximeter into action and cause the word “HIRED” to
appear on the face of the taximeter;

35
Page 68



(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Such key, flag or other device shall be capable of being locked in such a position that
the machinery of the taximeter is not in action and that no fare is recorded on the face of
the taximeter;

When the machinery of the taximeter is in action there shall be recorded on the face
of the taximeter in clearly legible figures a fare not exceeding the rate or fare which
the proprietor or driver is entitled to demand and take for the hire of the carriage by
distance in pursuance of the tariff fixed by the Council:

The word “Fare” shall be printed on the face of the taximeter in plain letters so as
clearly to apply to the “Fare” recorded thereon,;

The taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face thereof are at all
times plainly visible to any person being conveyed in the carriage, and for that purpose
the letters and figures shall be capable of being suitably illuminated during any period of
hiring;

The taximeter and all the fittings thereof shall be so affixed to the carriage with seals or
other appliances that it shall not be practicable for any person to tamper with them,
except by breaking, damaging or permanently displacing the seals or other appliances.

Every proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause the same to be provided with a roof
sign so constructed as to comply with the following requirements, that is to say:-

(@  The sign shall bear the words “FOR HIRE” in plain letters at least two inches
in height;

(b)  The sign shall be capable of being so operated that it indicates clearly and
conveniently to persons outside the carriage whether or not the carriage is for
hire.

PROVISIONS REGULATING THE CONDUCT OF THE PROPERIETORS AND DRIVERS OF
HACKNEY CARRIAGES PLYING WITHIN THE COUNTY BOROUGH IN THEIR SEVERAL
EMPLOYMENTS, AND DETERMINING WHETHER SUCH DRIVERS SHALL WEAR ANY,
AND WHAT BADGES

6.

The driver of a hackney carriage provided with a taximeter shall:-

(@) When standing or plying for hire, keep the key, flag or other device fitted in
pursuance of the Byelaw in that behalf locked in the position in which no fare is
recorded on the face of the taximeter;

(b) As soon as the carriage is hired by distance, and before beginning the journey,
bring the machinery of the taximeter into action by moving the said key, flag or
other device, so that the word “HIRED” is legible on the face of the taximeter and
keep the machinery of the taximeter in action until the termination of the hiring;

(c) Cause the dial of the taximeter to be kept properly illuminated throughout any part
of the hiring which is during the hours of darkness, this being the time between half
an hour after sunset to half an hour before sunrise, and also at any other time at the
request of the hirer.

36
Page 69



10.

11.

12.

A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall not tamper with, or permit any person to
tamper with, any taximeter with which the carriage is provided, with the fitting thereof, or
with the seals affixed there to.

The driver of a hackney carriage shall behave in a civil and orderly manner and shall
take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of persons conveyed in or entering
or alighting from the vehicle.

The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage who has agreed or has been hired to be in
attendance with the carriage at an appointed time and place shall, unless delayed or
prevented by some sufficient cause, punctually attend with such carriage at such
appointed time and place.

A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall not convey or permit to be conveyed in
such carriage any greater number of persons than the number of persons specified on
the plate affixed to the outside of the carriage.

The driver of a hackney carriage shall, when standing or plying for hire, and when hired,
display on his person in such a manner as to be plainly visible, the hackney carriage
driver’'s badge issued to him by the Council.

The driver of a hackney carriage so constructed as to carry luggage shall, when

requested by any person hiring or seeking to hire the carriage:

(&) Convey a reasonable quantity of luggage;

(b) Afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading;

(c) Afford reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance of any building,
station or place at which he may take up or set down such person.

PROVISIONS FIXING THE RATES OR FARES TO BE PAID FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES
WITHIN THE COUNTY BOROUGH; AND SECURING THE DUE PUBLICATION OF SUCH
FARES

13.

14.

15.

The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall not be entitled to demand and take a
fare greater than that recorded on the face of the taximeter, save for any extra charges
authorised by the Council’s table of fares, for the time being in force, which it may not be
possible to record on the face of the taximeter.

The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause the table of fares for the time being in
force, to be exhibited inside the carriage, in clearly distinguishable letters and figures.

The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage bearing the table of fares in accordance with
the preceding byelaw, shall not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer the letters or figures
in the statement to be concealed or rendered illegible at any time while the carriage is
plying or being used for hire.

PROVISIONS SECURING THE SAFE CUSTODY AND RE-DELIVERY OF ANY PROPERTY
ACCIDENTALLY LEFT IN HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND FIXING THE CHARGES TO BE
MADE IN RESPECT THEREOF

37
Page 70



16. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall immediately after the termination of
any hiring, or as soon as practicable thereafter, carefully search the carriage for any
property which may have been accidentally left therein.

17. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall, if any property accidentally left therein
by any person who may have been conveyed in the carriage be found by or handed to
him:-

(a) carryit, as soon as possible, and in any event within 48 hours, if not sooner claimed
by, or on behalf of its owner, to the Council Offices, Ty Penallta, Tredomen Park,
Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed and leave it in the custody of the officer in charge of the
office on his giving receipt for it;

(b) be entitled to receive from any person to whom the property shall be re-delivered an
amount equal to five pence in the pound of its estimated value (or the fare for the
distance from the place of finding to the office of the Council, whichever be the
greater) but not more than five pounds.

PENALTIES

Every person who shall offend against any of these byelaws shall be liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale and in the case of a continuing
offence to a further fine not exceeding two pounds for each day during which the offence
continues after conviction therefor.

38
Page 71



APPENDIX F

Advice for Licensed Taxi Drivers

Carriage of young persons

As hackney carriages and private hire vehicles are regularly used to carry young persons. In

the interests of passenger and driver safety, young persons should not be carried in the front of
the vehicle.

Children under the age of 16 should be accompanied where possible, by at least one
responsible adult.

All passengers shall remain seated whilst the vehicle is in motion.

39
Page 72



Drivers of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles used for school contracts must comply
with the requirements of that contract in addition to the conditions specified in this policy
Wearing of Seatbelts

Drivers should always seek their own legal advice in the event of any query relating to the law
regarding seat belts. The following information was correct at the time of writing.

Drivers should be aware that the wearing of seatbelts is proven to prevent serious injury and
save lives. It is the driver's legal responsibility to ensure that any child is correctly restrained
whilst being transported in the vehicle. However exemptions from the wearing of seat belts in
licensed vehicles in limited circumstances are as follows:

Drivers

The following exemption to wearing a seatbelt applies by virtue of the Motor Vehicles (Wearing
of Seatbelts) Regulations 1993:

The driver of:

0] a licensed taxi while it is being used for seeking hire, or answering a call
for hire, or carrying a passenger for hire,
(i) a private hire vehicle while it is being used to carry a passenger for hire;

Passengers and children

In a licensed vehicle, if a child car seat is not available, a child under three years of age may
travel unrestrained only in the rear of the vehicle. [At no point should children be permitted to
stand in the rear of the vehicle whilst it is moving.]

Children aged 3 years or older can travel without a child's car seat if they wear an adult seat
belt

Children over 1.35 metres tall, or who are 12 or 13 years old in the front or rear seat of the
vehicle must wear the adult seat belt where fitted.

Sounding Horn
It is common practice for some taxi drivers to sound their vehicle horn to alert customers to their
presence, such use is not permitted.

The Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 1986 regulation 99 and rule 112 of the
Highway code states:

A vehicle horn may only be used while your vehicle is moving and you need to warn other road
users of your presence.

You MUST NOT use your horn

¢ while stationary on the road
e when driving in a built-up area between the hours of 11.30 pm and 7.00 am
e except when another road user poses a danger.

Taxi Ranks
Hackney carriages only are permitted to ‘rank up’ whilst waiting for customers. If you are first
in the queue at the taxi rank you may not call forward another licensed hackney carriage from

40
Page 73



your company (So as to preserve your position at the head of the rank) to take the passenger or
refuse short journeys.

This constitutes an offence under Section 53 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 which states:

‘A driver of a hackney carriage standing at any of the stands for hackney carriages who refuses
or neglects, without reasonable excuse to drive such carriage to any place within the prescribed
distances, or the distance to be appointed by any byelaw of the commissioners, not exceeding
the prescribed distance to which he is directed to drive the person hiring or wishing to hire such
carriage shall for each offence be liable to a penalty not exceeding level Two’.

Any contravention of the above named legislation may lead to legal proceedings being instituted
against any licensed hackney carriage driver committing this offence.

Drinking and Driving

35 microgrammes per 100 millilitres of breath or The Council takes a very serious view of any
driver who has been convicted of drink driving as they have jeopardised the safety of not only
the travelling public but also other road users. People are killed and injured in accidents, where
drivers are over the drink drive limit. There has been a decline in the number of drink driving
related accidents and fatalities but drivers should not become complacent. Licensed drivers
have a particular obligation for the safe carriage of the public in their vehicle.

At the time of writing the alcohol limit for drivers in Wales is
80 milligrammes of alcohol per 100 millilitres of blood,

107 milligrammes per 100 millilitres of urine.
In most other European countries including Scotland, the limit is less, 50 milligrammes per 100
millilitres of blood3.

There is no fool-proof way of drinking and staying under the limit. The amount of alcohol you
would need to drink to be considered over the driving limit varies from person to person. It
depends on:

Weight, age, sex and metabolism (the rate your body uses energy)

The type and amount of alcohol you’re drinking

What you’ve eaten recently

Your stress levels at the time

Even small amounts of alcohol can affect a person’s ability to drive so the only safe
advice is to avoid any alcohol if you are driving. Many of the functions that we depend
on to drive safely are affected when we drink alcohol:

o The brain takes longer to receive messages from the eye

o Processing information becomes more difficult

. Instructions to the body's muscles are delayed resulting in slower reaction times. You
can also experience blurred and double vision, which affects your ability to see things
clearly while you are driving. And you’re more likely to take potentially dangerous risks
because you can act on urges you normally repress.

41
Page 74



The police are allowed to stop any vehicle at their discretion and require drivers to be tested to
ascertain the level of alcohol in their system. Anyone caught over the legal alcohol limit when
driving will be banned from driving for at least 12 months, and fined up to £5,000, also be given
between three to 11 penalty driving points and could be sent to prison for up to six months.
Imprisonment, the period of disqualification, size of fine and number of penalty points depend
on the seriousness of the offence. If you're caught drink driving more than once in a 10 year
period, you'll be banned for at least three years. Licensed drivers who drink and drive jeopardise
their own safety, licence and livelihood.

Display of Registration Numbers and Taxi Licence Plates

The legal requirements for the display of registration plates may not be known by hackney
carriage or private hire vehicle proprietors/owners. The DVLA have responsibility for the supply
and display of registration marks and number plates. The display of registration numbers is
provided for in the Road Vehicles (Display of Registration Marks) Regulations 2001 (as
amended) and where a vehicle has been built to a European standard (EC Whole Vehicle Type
Approval) the registration number must be correctly displayed on a rectangular plate fitted into
the aperture prepared on the vehicle by the manufacturer. This applies to almost all vehicles
registered in the UK (there are exceptions for some imported vehicles e.g. those built for the
American market).

Displaying square number plates alongside local authority licensing plates in the number plate
aperture on hackney carriages and private hire vehicles is illegal. Where such plates are being
displayed the driver should bring the legal requirements to the attention of the operator,
proprietor or owner. If the driver is an owner driver they must take appropriate action to rectify
this matter.

The licensing authority licence plate must be correctly displayed on the rear of the vehicle as
required by the Council. Licence plates must not be displayed in rear windows or positioned in
such a way that the detail on the plate is obstructed from view.

42
Page 75



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 76



	Agenda
	3 Canlyniadau’r Ymgynghoriad a Darparu Profion Cerbydau Trwyddedig yn y Dyfodol.
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad C

	4 Adolygiad o Ofynion y Cyngor o ran Trwyddedu Cerbydau Hacni (Tacsis) a Cherbydau Hurio Preifat, Gyrwyr a Gweithredwyr.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2


